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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief:- (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
conducts business principally through its operating arm in China
(the “PRC”), namely, Fujian Shine Science Company Limited and
Shanghai Shine Science Company Limited. The Company was
incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability in July 2002 and was listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 12 August 2003.

The Group is principally engaged in research and development
of software solutions specially targetting the financial and
securities sectors in the PRC. Headquartered in Fujian, the Group
has a development and servicing network covering cities including
Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Fuzhou where the national stock
exchanges and majority of the financial institutions’ headquarters
are based. The comprehensive spectrum of the Group’s software
solutions was centrally developed in our software development
centres in Fuzhou and Shanghai, and implemented, customized
and supported by our local servicing teams.

Through its years of corporate developments, the Group
succeeds in building up its reputation and brand prestige and
has experienced phenomenal growth. The Group is currently one
of the predominant, preferred solution providers of securities
community in the PRC, rendering hardware, peripherals and
professional services in complement to its corporate software
solution offerings. The Group’s products have received high

recognition especially in the domestic securities community.

As our corporate mission, the Group will work to enhance its
position to be the best solution provider for the financial and
securities sectors in China.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the audited financial results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2008.

OPERATION REVIEW

In the past year, China’s securities market experienced a
continuous sluggishness which was influenced by the global
financial crisis and the deterioration of surrounding financial
environment. The SSE Composite Index dropped to 1664.93
points from the peak of 5522.78 points over the year, which led
to a difficult position for the industry. Meanwhile, to stabilize the
operation of the market during the Olympics period, the securities
dealers delayed their upgrading plans for IT system, which put a
huge pressure on the Group’s business. The Group recorded a
loss attributed to shareholders of approximately RMB33,585,000
in 2008.

During the year, along with the increasing emphasis on the
investor’s account management by the securities dealers and
the relevant business requirements, the Group engaged a key
research and development team and set up a centralized
management system for new customer’s account. Also, it focused
on the strengthening of the internal management and efficiency
of the Group and put great emphasis on making improvement in
product quality and on enhancing product functions.

LIQUEFIED COALBED GAS BUSINESS

In 2007, the Group plan to set up two coalbed gas-liquefying
plants to develop liquefied coalbed gas business in the PRC.
The construction of one of the two coalbed gas-liquefying plants
is completed in the year of 2008. The Group’s profitability is

expected to improve in the coming years.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

OUTLOOK

The advantage of the continuous development of China’s
securities market and the launch of new clearing products,
coupled with the Group’s leading position in the research and
development of software solutions for China’s finance and
securities industry, we are optimistic about the Group’s outlook
in the business of research and development of software solutions
for China’s finance and securities industry. Meanwhile, the
development of one of the liquefied coalbed gas-liquefying plants
is completed which is expected to contribute to the stable income
of the Group in the long term.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would also like this opportunity
to express our heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, customers
and business associates for their continuous support to the
Group.

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

27 March 2009
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Market Review

In this year, the Group mainly focused on the research and
development of software solutions for the finance and securities
industry in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

In the past year, China’s securities market experienced a
continuous sluggishness which was influenced by the global
financial crisis and the deterioration of surrounding financial
environment. The SSE Composite Index dropped to 1664.93
points from the peak of 5522.78 points over the year, which led
to a difficult position for the industry. Meanwhile, to stabilize the
operation of the market during the Olympics period, the securities
dealers delayed their upgrading plans for IT system, which put a
huge pressure on the Group’s business. During the year, along
with the increasing emphasis on the investor’s account
management by the securities dealers and the relevant business
requirements, the Group engaged a key research and
development team and set up a centralized management system
for new customer’s account. Also, it focused on the strengthening
of the internal management and efficiency of the Group and put
great emphasis on making improvement in product quality and
on enhancing product functions.

The regulatory bodies has been constantly increasing its
regulatory power over securities companies, and grade securities
companies based on their risk prevention capability and business
development, etc., so as to screen out quality companies. As a
result, the competitiveness of quality securities companies will
be strengthened continuously. Following further segmentation
and optimization of securities companies’ customers, the Group’s
competitive strength as a provider of professional information
technology for the securities industry will become more
prominent. This will also drive the Group’s business development.
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In respect of market share, the Group remains the leader of the
industry that focuses on the research and development of
software solutions for the finance and securities industry in the
PRC. With the exception of a few giant securities companies
which develop their own trading platforms, most securities
companies in China are still using the Group’s platform products
as trading platform. Therefore, the Group would directly benefit
from the rapid development of the Chinese stock market.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

In addition, targeting the third party custody business, the Group
launched E-SIM5.0, a third party custody platform; along with
E-SIMB.0, a new generation of settlement platform with complete
functions and more powerful performance, in a timely manner.

For the main products of the Group, the third party custody
platform E-SIM5.0 acquired a new and main securities dealer
customer; the new generation settlement platform E-SIM6.0
acquired 15 new customers during the year, which recorded an
outstanding sales result for the accounting year. For other
products of the Group, the video system acquired 12 new
customers during the year and the margin business system also
acquired 3 new customers. Moreover, the centralized
management system for new customer’s account, the latest
product developed by the Group, achieved a breakthrough in
sales during the year and had been successfully introduced to
two main securities dealer customers, establishing a foundation
of market promotion for the coming year.

Amid a market environment with enormous opportunities and
challenges, the Group also invested in strengthening our product
research and development and customer services so as to
complement the Group’s development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
CEAERE SR

FINANCIAL REVIEW B4 5 Ol B
Turnover F X

Turnover by business operations for the two consecutive year HE_ZZE)\F+_A=1+—HILEEREFE -

ended 31 December 2008 was summarised as follows: BERE D EEBERMDOT
2008 2007
—EEN\FE —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Sales of software B IEE 10,527 29,810
Sales of hardware W E 14,906 5,859

Maintenances and HEE I B Ath AR

other services fee I & 13,165 13,730

Provision of liquefied coalbed gas RERIEEESR - —

Total HES 38,598 49,399

The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of RMB38,598,000 TEEBRAFEHBREEEBTHARE
for the year, representing a decrease of approximately 22% 38,598,0007C - MEAFH D H22% - P EZER
compared with last year. The decrease was mainly attributable :

to:

. Since the Shine Securities Integrate Management Platform . BN B AR e BB TA0E_EZT+F

6.0 was introduced to the market in 2007, many signed LTS - TARZEEITNHEESR
sales contracts were accounted during the year 2007. In ERZIZEZHLFAR - BE—FXI2He
the past year, China’s securities market experienced a BMEHTE BERAESRRENRL A+
continuous sluggishness which was influenced by the BEEHFMISITHERARKR  (TEEBEARR
global financial crisis and the deterioration of surrounding R ARTREHBAREM SN TIRE
financial environment led to a difficult position for the 17 AREMEENTELNTE » K%
industry. Meanwhile, to stabilize the operation of the EH M ER T K -

market during the Olympics period, the securities dealers
delayed their upgrading plans for IT system, which

decrease the sale of the Group’s software.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CEAERER Sk

Loss attributable to shareholders was approximately
RMB33,585,000, compared with loss attributable to shareholders
of approximately RMB2,500,000 for last year, mainly due to:

° The Company’s gross profit for the year was 4,456,000,
a decrease of approximately RMB22,121,000 compared
with that of last year, due to a 22% or RMB10,801,000
decrease in the turnover during the year and therefore,
the Group’s loss attributable to shareholders was

enlarged.
OTHER REVENUES

The major revenue was the tax refund on value added tax for the
sales and distribution of the Group’s own software. The amount
was decrease by approximately RMB7,386,000 compare with
last year. The decrease is mainly due to the loss on trading
securities was approximately RMB2,536,000 (2007: Gain on
trading securities was RMB3,676,000).

DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

There was no material fluctuation for both years.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES

There was no material fluctuation for both years.

MAEE 2 I fE(L B 18 49 A R #33,585,0007C °
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EFFEIRG ARMEA,456,0007T @ ELEE TR
L8 ANREE22,121,0000T © B S EEZ
RENEEEX -

Httlk 2
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2 536,000(2007 : ExlmAmARE
3,676,000) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R ERE S

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The other operating expenses were approximately
RMB7,373,000 in the year, while it was approximately
RMB2,665,000 in the previous year.

Other operating expanses increased by RMB4,708,000 mainly
because increase in impairment loss of trade receivables,
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset of
RMB3,193,000, RMB321,000 and RMB3,017,000 respectively
offset by the drop in write-off of bad debts of RMB1,694,000.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB120,130,000 including total cash, bank and
deposits balances of approximately RMB39,379,000. The Group
has implemented disciplined financial and risk managements.
The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated by dividing Group’s total
external borrowings by its shareholders fund was 33%. Further,
the Group had not charged on any of its assets as at 31
December 2008.

During the year, the Group has not entered into any material
transactions or significant investment which are classified as
notifiable transactions as defined under Chapter 19 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s operating transactions, assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in either Renminbi or Hong Kong dollar.
The Directors believes that Renminbi will remain relatively stable
against Hong Kong dollar in the foreseeable future and considers
the Group’s present exposure to exchange risk is relatively
minimal. Currently, no financial arrangements have been
implemented for hedging purpose. Nevertheless, the Directors
will closely monitor and from time to time reassess the exchange
risk exposures of the Group and enter into non-speculative
hedging arrangements if considered necessary.

H fih 5 58 B 3T
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R ERE S

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The segmental information of the Group was disclosed in note
13 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As a software solution provider, people are the Group’s most
valuable assets. Accordingly, human resources framework is one
of the Group’s critical strategic policies.

The Group is a “people-oriented” and “equal opportunity”
employer whereas its staff selection and promotion process will
only be determined with reference to employees’ own merits and
their competency in relation to their responsibility. Employee
remuneration includes basic salaries and benefits-in-kind such
as medical and insurance coverage, retirement benefits scheme,
and other discretionary incentives etc.

Employee remuneration is maintained at market competitive level
and will be regularly reviewed within the general framework of
the Group’s human resources system. Remuneration policy is
basically determined with reference to individual performance as
well as financial results of the Group which will be revised from
time to time when performances of staff is warranted.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had an aggregate of 270
employees, of which 157 were research and development staff,
53 were engineering and customer service staff, 46 were
administrative staff and 14 were marketing staff. Staff cost,
excluding directors’ emoluments, was approximately
RMB27,181,000 (2007: RMB19,154,000) for the year ended
31 December 2008.
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Corporate Governance Report

%.—-ﬁ:

a%E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(a)

(b)

Application of Corporate Governance
Principles

The Group is committed to promoting good corporate
governance, with the objectives of (i) the maintenance of
responsible decision making, (ii) the improvement in
transparency and disclosure of information to
shareholders, (iii) the continuance of respect for the rights
of shareholders and the recognition of the legitimate
interests of shareholders, and (iv) the improvement in
management of risk and the enhancement of performance
by the Group. The Group has applied the principles set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“HKSE Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) with these objectives in
mind.

Promulgation of Company’s Corporate
Governance Code

To this end, the Group has promulgated a set of Code on
Corporate Governance (“Company Code”) which sets out
the corporate standards and practices used by the Group
to direct and manage its business affairs. It is prepared
by referencing to the principles, code provisions and
recommended best practices set out in the HKSE Code,
which came into effect on 1 January 2005. In addition to
formalizing existing corporate governance principles and
practices, the Company Code also serves the purpose of
assimilating existing practices with benchmarks
prescribed by the HKSE Code and ultimately ensuring high
transparency and accountability to the Group’s

shareholders.
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(c) Compliance of Company and HKSE’s (c) 25] R B3 P <F Rl 30y
Code’s Provisions BT
The Group has complied with all provisions in the BT X ATt E REE SN - R E B ESFAR]SPA]
Company Code and the HKSE Code with the deviations B RZ P ST AR PR B 163 o

mentioned below.

On 12 August 2005, the Company set up the following RZZEZRFNATZH  XRARKIL TS
board committees and adopted the company code, being EEZEQURMARISTA - ARG 212
its own code on corporate governance: — EasThl
(a)  Remuneration Committee; (@ FMHEEZ:
(o)  Nomination Committee. by REZEEZT-
The Company Code contains all the Code Provisions of N aElsF A B IEE R FT SR RIA 2 T B sFRIE X
the HKSE Code and other provisions. LA K2 EABAR ST ©
Nk £
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY ERETESS
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding ARAERA—IBTRITMEEGRR B ZER ET R
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than BIZE5. 4816 E5.67TIKFTHIEREE L EFETEFH
those as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. RSB 2IZBFFR - KAARARIESRE ABER -
Having made specific enquiry of the directors of the Company, FBEEEREE ST )\FEANHBETZERT

all directors have complied with the required standard of dealings BIFT7 "B EEEETT mﬁﬁé%Ziﬁifﬁ’iE—Eﬂ'J&
and code of conduct regarding securities transactions by B<psphl o

directors as set out in the code of conduct for the year 2008.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company is entrusted
with the overall responsibility for promoting the success of the
Company by the direction and supervision of the Company’s
business and affairs.

The Board comprises a total of seven Directors, with two
Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman)
and Mr. Shi Liang; two Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwok
Shun Tim and Mr. Ye Jinxing and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun, Mr. Yan Chang
Ming and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. Ms. Pang Yuk Fong has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

APPOINTMENT TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Under Code Provision of the HKSE Code non-executive directors
should be appointed for specific terms, subject to re-election.
Currently, the Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-
executive Directors have no set term of office but are subject to

retirement by rotation at annual general meetings of the Company

in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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Roles of Directors

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for appointing and
supervising senior management to ensure that the operations of
the Group are conducted in accordance with the objectives of

the Group. The principal roles of the Board are:

° to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies
and business plan;

° to monitor and control operating and financial performance

through the determination of the annual budget; and

° to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of
the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board is directly accountable to the shareholders and is

responsible for preparing the accounts.
Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management
responsibility to the management staff under the instruction/

supervision of the Board.

The management staff of the Company are principally responsible

for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such other
acts as may be exercised and performed by the Directors,
save and except for those that may specifically be reserved
by the Board/or thee committees set up by the Board for
decision and implementation; or those that may only be
exercised by the Board pursuant to the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company, the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable Laws and regulations.

TEBERREEEERAA
“ETN\FER
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2. formulating and implementing policies for business
actives, internal controls and administration of the

Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its
business activities; and

4. keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which
may be inspected by any members of the Board or the
Board committees upon request.

The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic basis to

ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(HCEOH)

Under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the HKSE Code, the roles of
chairman and CEO should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Currently, Mr. Shi Liang is
holding the title of CEO. Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng is the Chairman
of the Board. The Board meets regularly to consider major matters
affecting the business and operations of the Group. The Board
considers that this structure will balance the power and authority
between the Board and management and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decision

promptly and efficiently.

2. BELATARARBEY  EF - WEPE
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BOARD OPERATION HEE®

Regular Board meetings are held normally every three months, EEe—WeS=-HACE— R TEEEERS
with additional meeting arranged, if and when required. In 2008, INZHEETE - EETER BT NFEEIT+AE
the Board held 12 meetings. The attendance record of each moBEFENENHRELENT

member of the Board is set out below:

Attendance
HEE

Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman) 11/12
FARBEE (FE)
Mr. Shi Liang 11/12
Mss
Non-executive Director:
EHITES
Mr. Kwok Shum Tim 9/12
FHLIFE &
Mr. Ye Jinxing 2/12
-l b
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BIFERTES
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 10/12
BEERE
Mr. Yan Chang Ming 10/12
BRALE
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong 9/12
ZEFTt

Directors are free to contribute alternative views at meetings and EERSLUVERERTANER  EEEATRE
major decisions would only be taken after deliberation at Board TEFeeR LETHRERED - MESTER
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of X KA M EE L HE AFEFZEHRL
interests or material interests in the proposed transactions or ~ A EAEZ - BEEEH Tt ASHETAZ
issues to be discussed would not be counted in the quorum of Y ERERARERERERRE -BEFE /LK
meeting and would abstain from voting on the relevant resolution. SHRLBBAATIWERT  ESUBEREH -
Minutes of the Board/committee meetings are kept by the

Company Secretary and are open for inspection by Directors.
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All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied

with, and advising the Board on compliance matters.
Directors’ Duties

Every Director is kept abreast of his responsibilities as a director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and

development of the Company:

° A comprehensive director’s handbook is issued to every
Director, which sets out guidelines on conduct by making
reference to the relevant sections of the statutes or the
GEM Listing Rules, and reminds Directors of their
responsibilities in making disclosure of their interests and
potential conflict of interests.

° Orientation programmes are organised for providing
induction to new Directors to help them familiarise with
the Company’s management, business and governance

practices.

° Management provides appropriate and sufficient
information to Directors and the committee members in a
timely manner to keep them apprised of the latest
development of the Group and enable them to discharge
their responsibilities. Directors also have independent and
unrestricted access to senior executives of the Company.

CONDUCT ON SHARE DEALINGS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as referred to in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company, having
made specific enquiries to its directors and supervisors, confirms
that, throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2008, all
directors and supervisors met the criteria laid down in the said
code for securities transactions by directors.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS EFEHe

As mentioned above, a remuneration committee was established b HFEEEER S AFNA+H
on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following purposes: — R - B BREIE

(a)  to make recommendations to the Board on policies and (a) REEMSAETEENBHMNBR K2
structure for remuneration of directors and senior % REERIER T EERAENREFSIE LT
management and on the establishment of a formal and ZHMECK - RMESSROER
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

(b)  to determine the remuneration packages for executive by EBEFRTEESkafTEENHSES I
directors and senior management and to make MIERTESHHNeRNESSREES -
recommendations to the board on the remuneration of

non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of all of the Company’s FTEEEeRA NGB IIERNITESANX 2
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun, BRERLE  BRBLEER)REEFLLT -
Mr. Yan Chang Ming (Chairman) and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. The FTNZES s BEARN RETHITEERITBA
duty of Remuneration Committee is to review and determine the B 7 HBUR M Fis

remuneration policy and packages of the executive directors and

executives.

In 2008, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. The FTWEEeR _EENFERIT—RERE - BLE
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set out GREMTBLENT

below:

Attendance

g%

Mr. Luo Wei Kun 1/1
BEERE
Mr. Yan Chong Ming (Chairman) 1/1
BRALE (FE)
Ms. Pang Kuk Fong 1/1

ZEFLLE
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the meeting, members of the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration packages and overall benefits of the Directors
by taking into account factors such as remuneration packages
and benefits offered by comparable companies, the respective
contribution of each of the Directors to the Group and the

business objectives of the Group.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for
reviewing all relevant remuneration data and market conditions
as well as the performance of individuals and the profitability of
the Group, and proposing to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration and approval, remuneration packages for the
executive directors and executives.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

As mentioned above, a Nomination Committee was established
on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following purposes: —

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorship; and

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or reappointment of
directors and succession planning for directors.

The Nomination Committee is made up of all of the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Luo Wei Kun,

Mr. Yan Cheng Ming (Chairman) and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong.

L FHZEENECRES TEER (WRBELRTF
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In 2008, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set out
below:

PEERREEEERAT
ZEEN\FFR

RAZBEER _TEN\FLHET—K
EREMHFELENT

&% BXREB

Attendance

w2

Mr. Luo Wei Kun

BHRESRE

Mr. Yan Chong Ming (Chairman)
BRALE (FE)

Ms. Pang Kuk Fong
ZEFLL

the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Company’s Board of Directors, makes
reference to criteria including, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
accomplishment and experience in the relevant industry,
professional and educational background, and commitment in
respect of available time and relevant interest. The Nomination
Committee was satisfied with the existing composition of the
Company'’s Board of Directors and recommended no change in
the near term.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was established on 28 July
2008 and is currently composed of all three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun,
Mr. Yan Chang Ming and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (Chairman). The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s
annual reports, financial statements, interim reports and quarterly
reports; (b) To serve as a focal point for communication between
Directors, the external auditors and internal auditors; (c) To assist
the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing an
independent review and supervision of financial reporting, and
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system; and (d)
To review the appointment of external auditors on an annual basis
as well as to ensure independence of the continuing auditor.

1/1

1/1

1/1
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In 2008, the Audit Committee held four meetings. The attendance ERLZEEeR 2R \FERTEAEH - B8
record of each member of the Committee is set out below: GREMIBBLENT

Attendance
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 4/4
BB
Mr. Yan Chong Ming 4/4
BRELE
Ms. Pang Kuk Fong (Chairman) 4/4
TEH LT (ERE)
At the meetings, the Audit Committee has carefully reviewed the 2L BERZESEHNEEARARRINEERSE -

Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results and its system
of internal control and has made suggestions to improve them.
The Committee also carried out and discharged its other duties
set out in HKSE Code. In the course of doing so, the Committee
has met the company’s management and qualified accountant
several times during 2008. Each member of the Audit Committee
has unrestricted access to the Group’s external auditors and the
Management.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the annual accounts which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs of the results and cash flow for the year. In
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2008,
the Directors have:

° adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and ensured the accounts are prepared on a
going concern basis.
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The company recognises that high quality corporate reporting is
important in reinforcing the trust relationship between the
company and the its stakeholders and aims at presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in all corporate
communications. The annual, interim and quarterly results of the
Company are announced in a timely manner within the required
limits after the end of the relevant periods.

Internal Control

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control over
financial, operational and compliance issues for the year 2008.
The Audit Committee concluded that, in general, the Group has
set up a sound control environment and installed necessary
control mechanisms to monitor and correct noncompliance. The
Board, through the review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied
that the Group in 2008, fully complied with the code provisions
on internal controls as set forth in the Code.

In order to maintain a high quality of Corporate Governance, the
Group employed a Qualified Accountant in current year and will
still employ a Qualified Accountant in the coming years. The Audit
Committee also concluded that the Group has employed
sufficient staff for the propose of accounting, financial and internal
control.

External Auditors

The Group’s external auditors are CCIF CPA Limited. The Audit
Committee is mandated to ensure continuing auditors’ objectivity
and safeguard independence of the auditors, and it has:

° determined the framework for the type and authorisation
of non-audit services for which the external auditors may
provide. In general, the engagement of the external
auditors to perform non-audit services is prohibited except
for tax related services; and

o agreed with the Board on the policy relating to the hiring
of employees or former employees of the external auditors
and monitored the applications of such policy.
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During 2008, the fees paid to the Company’s external auditors
for audit services amounted to RMB542,000.

The Group has not employed any staff who was formerly involved

in the Group’s statutory audit.
Corporate Communication

The Group recognizes the importance of shareholder feedback
and the need for ongoing communication with its stakeholders,
including the general public, investors, and the institutional and
individual shareholders. The Company published annual, interim
and quarterly reports which contained detailed information about
the Group. Inquiries by shareholders are directed and dealt with

by senior management of the Group.

RZZEZNF KRR FINEZEED 2 %8R
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DIRECTOR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (“Mr. Wang”), aged 46, has been
appointed as Chairman of the Board, an executive Director and
the compliance officer of the Company since May 2006. From 9
January 2004 to 26 May 2006, Mr. Wang was an executive
director of Tianjin Tianlian Public Utilities Company Limited
(“Tianjin Tianlian”), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8290), and was
responsible for its business strategies. He graduated from the
University of Tianjin with a bachelor degree in engineering in 1984.
Mr. Wang is also a director of Tianjin Leason Investment Group
Company Limited (K= 5t g% 1% & S B B R 2 7). Mr. Wang is
a director of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and is beneficially
interested in 92% of the entire issued share capital of Jumbo
Lane Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
company which holds 332,790,000 Shares, representing
approximately 54% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this report. Accordingly, Mr. Wang is deemed to
be interested in these 332,790,000 Shares under the SFO.

Mr. Shi Liang (“Mr. Shi”), aged 41, has been appointed as an
executive Director since May 2006. Mr. Shi graduated with a
bachelor degree in Material Science in the Shanghai University
of Science and Technology of the PRC and a master degree in
management from the Business School of the People’s University
in the PRC. He was a vice general manager of Tianjin Tianlian.
He had worked for Jiangsu Nan Tong Electric Melter Company
and Electronic Industrial Division Basic Products Department.
He had also worked for Jiangsu Hua Yong Electronic Group
Company as deputy manager of international cooperation
department and secretary to the board of directors. He had also
held various positions as a project manager, senior manager and
an assistant to executive director in the investment banking of
United Securities Limited, a securities company in the PRC. Mr.
Shi owns approximately 4% interest in Jumbo Lane Investments
Limited.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEREEH

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ye Jinxing, aged 42 has been a director of the Company
since July 2002 and was redesigned as a non-executive Director
on 16 May 2006. He is a senior economist. He joined the Group
in October 2000 and has been in charge of the Group’s overall
financial management, strategic capital planning and treasury
functions of the Group. Mr. Ye previously held various managerial
positions at the Quanzhou City Branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China in Fujian Province from 1990 to 1994
and Minfa Securities Company Limited from 1994 to 1999.
Mr. Ye has over 14 years of experience and in-depth knowledge
in domestic banking, capital and money markets. Mr. Ye was
awarded a bachelor’s degree in economics from the Jiangxi

College of Finance and Economics in 1990.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 35, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director since May 2006. Mr. Kwok is currently
the company secretary and chief financial officer of Tianjin
Tianlian. Mr. Kwok graduated from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and also obtained a master degree in
China Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Kwok has experience in the field of audit, corporate
finance and financial management, Mr. Kwok is a director of
Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and owns approximately 4%
interest in Jumbo Lane Investments Limited. Currently, he is an

independent non-executive director of Core Healthcare
Investment Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8250).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Luo Wei Kun, aged 70, has been a director of the Company
since August 2006. He graduated from the Tsinghua University
with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in 1964 and started
postgraduate studies in the same year. He was awarded a
postgraduate diploma in civil engineering in 1967. He acted as a
technician in Wuhan Branch of the Chinese Medicine Industrial
Limited during 1968 to 1969 and as a technician, deputy section
chief, section chief, engineer and vice chief engineer in the State
Ministry of Medicine - Hubei Medical Manufactory Branch during
1969 to 1985. He then worked as a senior engineer, section
chief and assistant factory manager in Tianjin Second Coal Gas
Factory during 1986 to 1992. From 1992 to 2000, he acted as a
vice chief engineer in Tianjin Utility Department and at the same
time, worked as a chief engineer in Tianjin City Gas Administrative
Office. After his retirement in March 2000, Mr. Luo acted as a
consultant of Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office and Tianjin
City Gas Planning Office. Currently, he is an independent non-
executive director of Tianjin Tianlian.

Mr. Yan Changming, aged 46, has been a director of the Company
since August 2006. He graduated from the Tsinghua University
with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering in 1986. He
also obtained a master degree in chemical engineering from the
Tsinghua University and University of Ottawa in 1989 and 1994,
respectively. Since 1994, he has been acting as the President of
Canada Cadavisa Investment Consulting Inc. Currently, he is the
vice president and secretary general of the Chamber of
Commerce of Chinese Western Returned Association and the
Canada Branch of Chinese Western Returned Association. He
is also the vice secretary general of all Federation of Returned
Oversea Chinese.
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Ms. Pang Yuk Fong, aged 43, has been a director of the Company
since August 2006. She is an experienced practicing certified
public accountant in Hong Kong with over 20 years’ professional
experience in the accounting and auditing. She is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms.
Pang holds a master of professional accounting degree from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Pang’s professional career
started in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. She has been the principal
partner in Y. F. Pang & Co., Certified Public Accountants since
1990’s and the managing director of AMC First Plan International
Limited which is engaged in business advisory services in the
Asia Pacific region. Ms. Pang was appointed by the Cuilong
Copper International Holding Limited in 2006 as its independent
non-executive director.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Gu Yun, aged 58, was the division head of software
development. Ms. Gu graduated from the Xiamen University in
1985 majoring in finance in the Department of Finance and
Banking. She joined the Group in December 1997 and assumes
responsibility for strategic planning and business development
of the Group. Before joining the Group, Ms. Gu worked in the
Fujian Branch of the People’s Bank of China from 1976 to 1992
and had been a vice general manager in Fujian Securities Trading
Centre. Ms. Gu has good and extensive business connections
and has a broad range of experiences in the domestic securities
and banking industries dating back to 1980s.

Mr. Lui Chi Keung, aged 52, has been appointed as the company
secretary, qualified accountant and authorized representative of
the Company since September 2007. Mr. Lui is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Lui has over 26 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, financial and business management.

| /

CEFLZT  SF43% - AZTEAFNARAR
”ﬂi% TR —EZREBLEELBRNBTAER

CHEER RS ARB0FMEEER - &
j:mﬁﬁ’&uijgﬁﬁﬂi“ﬁ&ﬁﬁ% TR AEERE
g8 BERQ 7*)&2/\@&%%%?%%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ABEE2NEE  HEEFEIASBEESHEL
By o D/ﬁiﬁ"{ﬁgb RSP EE A
E o HOOFRMG  PRIREAZES SIS
BN EREAEA  MIERDRKREPRARNE
EEF'EJHﬁf&ﬂ'ﬂﬂiiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁFﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ?&’&%%i@m

c TN ZEZERNFECuilong Copper
International Holding LimitedZ{E A H B IEHITE
=

BREEANS

BERL - 585% - REFREMZHFIEE - BX
ITR-NN\AFEEMAZREE  EFBRRITR
TEERE - B-ANEFT - AMAREEIAK
—HEABAEBEZRBEREBAEBTER - MAXE

B BRETER—NERNFE- AN _FHEE
BHIRARBRITRENT UBERELEFRXFHT
DRIARKE BRI HRARFBEZEBHE - AN
ZERAKCERAESZRBRTEBREELR -

EEEEE 525 BEZETLFNAREZTAR
RARZARIWE - GERGHMBREREK - B
EERBBSHAMACEREE  NABFTLARE
A EREE c BEEREH  RE - KR
REEEFEBED - TRNFER -

H



Directors’ Report
ESERE

The directors of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited
(the “Company”) present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 42.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2008 are set out in the balance sheets on pages
43 and 44 respectively. The cash flows of the Group are set out
in the consolidated cash flow statement on pages 46 and 47.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Liang

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chang Jian (resigned on 15 October 2008)
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim
Mr. Ye Jinxing

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Wei Kun
Mr. Yan Chang Ming
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Kwok Shun Tim, Mr. Ye Jinxing, Mr. Luo Wei
Kun, Mr. Yan Chang Ming and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on page 27

to page 30 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

(i) There was no transaction which need to be disclosed as
connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of Chapter 20 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM Listing Rules”); and

(if) No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business subsisted at the year-end or any time during
the year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors of the Company or the management
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business
which causes or may cause any significant competition with the
business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests of the Director and chief
executive of the Company and each of their respective associates
(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules), in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which such Director or chief executive
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating
to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the

Company:
Name Capacity
®A 54

Interest of controlled
corporation
LA RER

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng

TaBLE

Note: Such shares are owned by Jumbo Lane Investments
Limited.

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 92% interest in the issued
share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and
he is taken to be interested in the shares owned by
Jumbo Lane Investments Limited pursuant to Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

Nature of Interest

Corporate interest

EERERTHRARREG
ARG REGFCHERNRE

RZFBENF+-_A=+—8 ARAREFHIE
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B fn R B2 15 B AR (IR IB & 55 M E R PI EXVER
F7 R8N EBME AN E M 2 e (BIEIRIE
B EMERIZEGRNESTAETRITRABRR
REAZERHKIER)  ROBREZFIRAEENE
BE21G M E BN AR BRIBZIGAEF 2 E LM
ZHEns  HOMRBAIZER LR AISE5.46E5.67 16k
BHEARNR MRz EHmAT

(1) RELFHERZFE

Number of shares/
underlying shares

Approximate %
of shareholdings

BEEtE BB/ EERGEE EREQEI L
332,790,000 53.6%
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(2)

Long position in shares of associated
corporations of the Company:

Director

et BB EE &R

Jumbo Lane Investments Limited
(Note)

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng

EFRBRLE EEREBRAR (ML)

Mr. Kwok Shum Tim Jumbo Lane Investments Limited
HAEEE BEEREBR AT

Mr. Shi Liang Jumbo Lane Investments Limited
MRt BEREERAT

Note: Jumbo Lane Investments Limited is a holding Company
of the Group, owns 54% of the shareholding of the
Group. Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 92% interest in
the issued share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments
Limited. Mr. Shi Liang and Mr. Kwok Shun Tim each own
4% in the issued share capital of Jumbo Lane
Investments Limited respectively.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware,
as at the 31 December 2008, none of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company and each of their
respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) had any interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which the Director or chief executive is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
were required, pursuant section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Name of associated corporation Nature of Interest
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Percentage of

interests in the registered
capital of the

associated corporation

1 Z LB M
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Personal 92%
A

Personal 4%
A

Personal 4%
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ESTHRE

3. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (3) EERE
As at the 31 December 2008, so far as is known to the RZFFENF+ZA=+—8  BARAE
Directors and the chief executive of the Company, the EREBTBABMRA  NIAT (RARE
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive ERERTHRABRIN BAREBES MBS
of the Company, had an interest or a short position in the EPIEXVERE2 K2 37 GR A M AN B9 5E 2 4
Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be BRAR - AERIEEREMTEN TR
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of ISR T EAKEEMEMK S AR 2
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was directly or RRE FREZEFERRAEE10% IA
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value b XRERA BRI ESIRA W
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all D

circumstances at general meetings of any other member
of the Group, or held any option in respect of such capital:

. . L
Long positions in shares BinZziFe
Percentage of

Name Number of Shares Nature of Interest shareholding

®AH gvig - ¢E] EEME BERBAES L

Jumbo Lane 332,790,000 Beneficial owner 53.6%

Investments Limited (Note 1)

B@EEREARAA (K1) EnEBA

Ms. Zhao Xin (Note 2) 332,790,000 Interest of spouse 53.6%

HEL LT (f2) BB 2

Notes: BaE

1. The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Wang 1. RN EX [ EEER] REEREET
Zhong Sheng in the paragraph headed “Directors’ HABRG - BERD RES 2 EmIOX
interests” and Chief Executive’s Interests or short portions Bl—BHRIThEEATEBEE # -
in shares, underlying shares and debentures interests
above.

2. Ms. Zhao Xin (the spouse of Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng) is 2. BEES RAEGRD - BB (FEEL
deemed to be interested in her spouse’s interest in the 2 BeAB) TR AN A B A H AR B4
Company which represent the same parcel of Shares moEm - BABEREAARATRAEZ
held by Jumbo Lane Investments Limited pursuant to B —#ERES ©

the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company,
other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company, who, as at 31 December 2008, had an interest
or a short position in the Shares and underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any other member of the Group or held any option in
respect of such capital.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
and chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such right.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the top five customers of the Group
together accounted for approximately 20.2% of the Group’s total
sales for the year while the single largest customers accounted
for approximately 5.4% of the Group’s total sales during the year.

Whereas external purchase, mainly arising from its hardware
resale operations, only accounted for about 32.9% of the Group’s
cost of sales during the year, the top five suppliers of the Group
for the year under review together accounted for approximately
85.6% of the Group’s total purchases for the year and the single
largest supplier accounted for approximately 50.6% of the
Group’s total purchases.
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None of the directors, their respective associates or any
shareholders of the Company who owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company has any interests in the
Group'’s five largest customers and suppliers above mentioned.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2008.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particular of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, warrants
or instruments carrying other similar rights as at 31 December
2008.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2008 neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company’s listed Shares.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. CCIF
CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

27 March 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AL RENR &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA LEASON
INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 42 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2(b)(ii)
in the consolidated financial statements which indicates that the
Group incurred a loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of approximately RMB33,585,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2008 and as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB42,905,000. These conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 2(b)(ii), indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2009

Ho Chun Shing
Practising Certificate Number P04396
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Consolidated Income Statement

HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminbi) i Z —TZNF+ - A=+ —HIFE (UAARKYE)

2008 2007
—EEN\F —EELF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B3 AR T ARBTT

Turnover =3 5,13 38,598 49,399
Cost of sales 5 & PR (34,142) (22,822)
Gross profit EF 4,456 26,577
Other revenue and net income HAp hrzs MoB A 6 2,677 10,063
Distribution costs 2 8H AR (5,902) (5,699)
Administrative expenses TEAX (25,216) (25,569)
Other operating expenses HMEafx (7,373) (2,665)
Finance costs =YD 9N 7(c) (1,903) (1,742)
(Loss)/profit before income tax  BRFTEH AT (B8) &R 7 (33,261) 965
Income tax FriS i 8 (324) (3,465)
Loss for the year TEEEE (33,585) (2,500)
Attributable to: T 5 pEfh -

Equity shareholders KRB HEm R 11 (33,585) (2,500)

of the Company
Dividend % F - -
RMB(cents) RMB(cents)
AR (1) ARE (1)

Loss per share BRER

Basic and diluted AR #E 12 (5.51) (0.49)

The notes on pages 48 to 143 form part of these financial

statements.

FABEE143R 2 M A B HRER A &b -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

ZEEERER

As at 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminb) R —ZZN\F+ A =+—H CAAREHIE)

2008 2007
—EENF e
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® T ARBFT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E 1 Y 14(a) 134,772 23,367
Prepaid lease payments for LERHTENS L HHES
land under operating leases 15 13,983 3,542
Intangible assets | EE 16 - 7,110
Deposits for acquisition of property, UBE¥I ¥ -« #2S R
plant and equipment ZE & 17 7,000 34,600
Deposits for acquisition of interests ~ UREEAEZFAA) T T b kg zs
in land under operating leases A 18 1,311 11,549
Available-for-sale investment AEEHERE 20 4,800 —
Deferred tax assets EIEFIE & B 31 1,169 —
163,035 80,168
Current assets REEE
Prepaid lease payments for LERNTEN I wHES
land under operating leases 15 363 143
Trading securities B &S 21 16,071 4,313
Inventories mE 22 969 769
Trade and other receivables JRE U5 AR R Ko EL Ath e U R IE 23 18,630 24,173
Tax recoverable AT Bl % IR 24 692 1,312
Fixed bank deposits RITE BT K 25 7,164 6,624
Cash and cash equivalents BeMNREeEEY 26 32,215 45147
76,104 82,481
Current liabilities rEEE
Trade and other payables JE T BR R N EL i B < FRIE 27 74,090 43,783
Deferred income JRAE UL A 28 3,713 1,750
Bank and other borrowings SR1T R E AhfE IR 29 40,000 7,960
Tax payable FET L IE 30 1,206 1,644
119,009 55,137
Net current (liabilities)/assets B (BB EEFE (42,905) 27,344
Total assets less current liabilities 2 & E R R E & & 120,130 107,512
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIBEFE 31 - (853)
NET ASSETS BEEFE 120,130 106,659
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFE
Share capital [iE@N 32(c) 6,399 5,922
Reserves & 32(a) 113,731 100,737
TOTAL EQUITY R 120,130 106,659
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EEEeR_TEENF A+ EARERILET
27 March 2009 T o
EE EF
Director Director

The notes on pages 48 to 143 form part of these financial FASE E143B 2 MR M SR ETEH P D -
statements.
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Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminb) R —ZZN\F+ A =+—H CAAREHIE)

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARBTT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E 1 Y 14(b) 1,218 1,598
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z&E 19 110,233 67,992
111,451 69,590
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables JFE L B TR N At FE I FR IR 23 25,234 20,045
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 26 785 5,496
26,019 25,541
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables JE A< BR 3 B EL A JE < BRIE 27 (21,593) (15,002)
Net current assets RBEEFRE 4,426 10,539
NET ASSETS EEFE 115,877 80,129
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXREE
Share capital &N 32(c) 6,399 5,922
Reserves ek 32(b) 109,478 74,207
TOTAL EQUITY HER 115,877 80,129
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson  EEERZZTZTNF= A+t AR LU ET
27 March 2009 %o
- 2
Director Director

The notes on pages 48 to 143 form part of these financial EABE E 1438 2 WA B ISz H R &5 o
statements.



TEBERRESERRAR

ZET N\FER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEHEREER
s = ‘E a2z X
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminbi) i Z —TZNF+ - A=+ —HIFE (UAARKYE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARAERRRER
Retained
profits/
(Accumulated
Share Share Merger General  Translation losses)
capital premium reserve reserve reserve  RERF/ Total
RA& RADEE ERid —REE BRERE (RER) EoH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETn AR®Tr ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2007 RZEZ+5-A—-A 5,014 34,845 2,351) 4,430 (404) 794 42,328
Exchange differences HENREE
on translation of HBHREL
financial statements EREE
of foreign entities - - - - (67) - (67)
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - (2,500) (2,500)
Profit appropriations Bk - - - 921 - (921) -
Total recognised income REEHRMA
and expenses for the year LAY A% - - - 921 67) (3,421) (2,567)
Issue of new shares BTHR 908 65,990 - - - - 66,898
At 31 December 2007 RZZZ+E
and 1 January 2008 +-A=+-H
RZZTENE
i = 5,922 100,835 (2,351) 5,351 (471) (2,627) 106,659
Exchange differences BENREE
on translation of HBHREL
financial statements EREE
of foreign entities - - - - (464) - (464)
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - (33,585) (33,585)
Total recognised income REFBAWA
and expenses for the year LAY EE - - - - (464) (33,585) (34,049)
Issue of new shares BIAR 477 47,043 - - - - 47,520
At 31 December 2008 RZBENF
+-B=+-H 6,399 147,878 (2,351) 5,351 (935) (36212 120,130

The notes on pages 48 to 143 form part of these financial $48H £ 143

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
u'l\gfﬁﬁiﬂtb%%

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminbi) i Z —TZNF+ - A=+ —HIFE (UAARKYE)

2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARMBF T
Operating activities REER
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSRLAT (B518) 5 A (33,261) 965
Adjustments for: BT FIERE
Depreciation e 2,140 1,570
Amortisation of prepaid lease BN TN
payments for land under bekichon i
operating leases 344 134
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 4,093 5,515
Impairment loss on property, WE - HER
plant and equipment B RN E] 321 -
Impairment loss on | EERBEREE
intangible assets 3,017 —
Interest income FEWA (513) (261)
Loss on disposal of property, MEWE - #a3
plant and equipment NS Ei=] 47 7
Net realised and unrealised B5BFCBEERK
losses/(gains) on trading KBIREIE (KaE) FE
securities 2,536 (3,676)
Impairment loss on trade JE W BR FORL B B 18
receivables 3,790 597
Write off of trade and other JE S BR 30 R EL A
receivables R U5 3 TE 8 - 1,694
Write back of impairment loss on FE YR FORLE
trade receivables =Rk EdE (839) (25)
Interest expenses on bank RIT R E B
and other borrowings Z BT 59 281
Other borrowing costs H {8 B AR 1,844 1,461
Operating cash flows before RETEEESEHA
changes in working capital ZBEHRESRE (16,422) 8,262
Increase in inventories FEEM (200) (649)
Increase in trade and other JRE U5 B SR e H A
receivables FE U RIE 8 N (4,224) (6,019)
Decrease/(increase) in tax AJ U 2 R TE R, >, (38 hn)
recoverable 620 (518)
Increase in trade and other JRE 1<) BR 5% R HL th B AT 5RIE
payables 8 h0 30,307 31,138
Increase in deferred income I AE U A 32 N 1,963 134
Cash generated from operations REEEKELECHEE 12,044 32,348
Tax paid e
PRC enterprise income tax paid EHPECENSH (2,784) (1,479)

Net cash from operating activities & ¥KEE >
ReFH 9,260 30,869



TEBERREEEERAA a7

ZEEN\FFR
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminb)) @ — T T N\F+-A=+—HILtFE UAAREIIE)
2008 2007
—EENF 2T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ix=2 AR® T ARBF T
Investing activities BRETH
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE - KR
plant and equipment NS RIE (81,920) (21,252)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - #es
property, plant and equipment NS 3 16
Prepaid lease payments for LERENT
land under operating leases AN TS (767) (2,164)
Payment for deposits for acquisition 2 IR B2 - 122
of property, plant and equipment REE & 2 BIE (4,400) (34,600)
Payment for deposits for W ELERNT
acquisition of interests in TR CE] &
land under operating leases ZFRIA - (11,549)
Payment for available-for-sale AP &
investment & ZHIE (4,800) —
Payment for purchase of trading BEEIHEHZN
securities (118,045) (85,575)
Proceeds from disposal of trading HEESES
securities FriS s E 103,574 37,750
Decrease/(increase) in amounts FE U ﬁ%%“‘ 4217
due from securities broker firms FIBR A, (1) 6,816 (225)
Increase in fixed bank deposits RTTEHAE BRI 0 (540) (6,624)
Interest received B B YA 513 261
Net cash used in investing RETHHAZHES
activities =2 (99,566) (73,962)
Financing activities REEE
Net proceeds from issue of BITHRFT 1S RIE
new shares FER 47,520 66,398
Proceeds from new bank and I RITREAMBERZ
other borrowings FriS s 1E 40,000 15,920
Repayment of bank and other BRI RE fth f& 5%
borrowings (7,960) (7,960)
Interest paid on bank HR1T R H Ath {8 5K
and other borrowings ZBAFE (59) (281)
Other borrowing costs paid HEMEEERR (1,844) (1,461)
Net cash from financing activities RIEEFBHE4E 2R & FHE 77,657 73,116
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁ%
and cash equivalents W) 18 05 (12,649) 30,023
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzH&
at 1 January RASZEY 45,147 15,009
Effect of change in foreign IR BB o
currency translation (283) 115
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+=ZA=+—H%2
at 31 December ReRREZEYD 26 32,215 45,147
The notes on pages 48 to 143 form part of these financial FASE E1438 2 MK B 5 R T H R 315

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 758 3R Pl e

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminbi) i Z —TZNF+ - A=+ —HIFE (UAARKYE)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 15 July 2002
under the Companies Act, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
shares of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section to the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are
development and sales of computer software, resale of
computer hardware, provision of system integration and
maintenance services; and manufacture and sales of
liquefied coalbed gas.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as

the “Group”).
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TEBERESEERAR (AR R=
ZZ_FLATHERBEFAERSENE -
TZERAECAR—FE=M KoK
B EFRSRETMRIRERRERA
A e ARBZBENEOREEBRAIZMER
R (B3 Fr)) AR (TRIZAR]) £7 - &
NEGEMER T BEEME 2 i - 19
BENFRIRBER] —H o

ARBEHEDTERREER - MENE
REAZEFEDA B RBMEITFE RS
& EHEE  EHASERREERS
ARBICRBREERHE -

RAPBRRERARAREMBAR (FHE
RINEH]) 2D RBEARE (AR &

725 -



Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 758 3R Pl e

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminbi) i Z —TZNF+ - A=+ —HIFE (UAARKYE)

FEEFHER

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments and
interpretations which are or have become effective.
It has also issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 3 provides information on the
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

2.

a)

TEBERREEEERAA
“ETN\FER
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ERHEAEN LA RFRAEER
RRABER 2 @5 HRERA - MEE3HE
BEBNER kA&t R RS
EREFEAKEMEBcATMES
ZEABRESHZER - AREHRBR
RZERBERERA

49




50

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 75 4R 3R P 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminbi) i Z —TZNF+ - A=+ —HIFE (UAARKYE)

FESERE o

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the
financial statements and going
concern concept

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2008
comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis, except those
disclosed otherwise in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity to HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

2.

b)
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TEBERRESERRAR
—ET)\FEH

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminbi) i Z —TZNF+ - A=+ —HIFE (UAARKYE)

FESHBE »

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

b) Basis of preparation of the
financial statements and going
concern concept (continuea)

i) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed
in note 4.

b)

MBRREREERF

= 4T AL AR A e
BEEEE ®

MHEEREREE (&)

AEBEFBERAEG S RBBRRE
et - A ZE2BMRATEER
B AARFENGLZ2HE B
R MZAG B ZEPTEE]
RAREE - MBERZERE SR
RHAMRER

RERBAYBHRRERKERERM
REFIEZ HH (BB RRBUER
FE) RMEE (FEH T FERERH
B2 BREAR) HRME4P R
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HA 75 4R 3R P 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminbi) i Z —TZNF+ - A=+ —HIFE (UAARKYE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®EBEK =

(Continued)
b) Basis of preparation of the b) MBRRGREERF
financial statements and going BEEWE @

concern concept (continuea)

B

ii)  Going concern concept i)  IFEEEEI

A

The Group incurred a loss for the year REBEBR-_ZZENF+ZA

attributable to equity shareholders of the —+t—BHBALAEER

Company of approximately RMB33,585,000 RELMFEBBEOARE

and net current liabilities of RMB42,905,000 33,585,000 A i BV & B F

as at 31 December 2008. Nevertheless, the AR 42,905,0007T © A

directors had adopted the going concern i - EERIE TR G

basis in the preparation of financial KARBEBERKEEEREAEE

statements of the Group based on the LK

following assumptions and conditions:

1) Subsequent to 31 December 2008 1) RZZEZENF+ZA
and as at 27 February 2009, the —t—HEBEERAZEZE
other borrowing of RMB40,000,000 nNFEZA=Z++tA8 -
disclosed in note 29 to the financial B 7% R 3% M 3E 29 FT
statements was due for repayment o HMERARE
in accordance with the loan 40,000,000 T #7 A £= &
agreement signed between the B — B ARG R
Group and a finance company. —mERBERAEIE
However, up to the date of approval HH - AT BERSE
of these financial statements, the B iR E R E
other borrowing had been rolled ZEMERBEERN
over for a further period of six &7 - M #%A el
months and the finance company ERTNEBEREE TR
has not indicated its intention to EBZEE -

withdraw their facilities granted to

the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminbi) i Z —TZNF+ - A=+ —HIFE (UAARKYE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®EBEK =

(Continued)

MBRREREERF

= 4T AL AR A e
BEEEE ®

b) Basis of preparation of the h)
financial statements and going

concern concept (continuea)

i)

Going concern concept (Continued)

2) Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng, the chairman
and executive director of the Group,
has undertaken not to demand for
the repayment of the amounts due
to him totalling approximately
RMB20,041,000 as at 31 December
2008 until the Group is financially
viable to do so.

In light of the assumptions and conditions
of the Group, the directors are confident
that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations in order to
maintain its operating scale and meet its
obligations in the next twelve months from
the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the
directors consider that it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis. The
financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the carrying amount
and reclassification of assets and liabilities
that might be necessary should the Group
be unable to continue as a going concern.

2) AEEXFERHTES
THEBLECERTS
TERAEEHEEN_-F
ZNE+-A=+—8
FERT B 2 FRIBHET A
R#20,041,0007T * B
ZEAREEMK B
BERIL -

ERAEE 2 BRIGS &
FEREL ARERKBERME
BESRNEEBMAE - U
BHEBES AR AR
FERKLERE YRETHEA
TRt EFRR - BFHE
REERREHNEE 2R
RIBAEZR - MHHRRY
TEREAEEEXGELSE
ZERTMAREERARL
FREE R EH D BREL ZEM[
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

c)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions,
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(h)(ii), unless the investment is

classified as held for sale.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

d)

Other investments in debt and
equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are
initially stated at cost, which is their transaction
price unless fair value can be more reliably
estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for
as follows, depending on their classification.

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in income
statement as incurred. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in income statement. The
net gain or loss recognised in income statement
does not include any dividends or interest earned
on these investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2(q)(iii)
and (iv).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the balance sheet at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(h)(i)).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

d)

e)

Other investments in debt and
equity securities continued)

Other investments in securities which do not fall
into any of the above categories are classified as
available-for-sale investments and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. At
each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity. Dividend income from
these investments is recognised in income
statement in accordance with the policy set out in
note 2(q)(iii) and, where these investments are
interest-bearing, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in income
statement. When these investments are
derecognised or impaired (see note 2(h)(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in equity is recognised in income statement.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group and/or the Company commits to
purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(h)(ii).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
income statement on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Buildings held for own use ~ Over the shorter of
unexpired term of the
leases or 20 years

— Leasehold improvements 5 years

— Computer equipment 3 — 5years
- Furniture and equipment 5 years

— Motor vehicles 5 — 8 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual

value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction and pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs
of construction of buildings, the costs of plant and
machinery and interest charges arising from
borrowings used to finance these assets during
the period of construction or installation and
testing. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and are available
for the intended use. When the assets concerned
are brought into use, the costs are transferred to
other property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
above.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

f)

Intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the cost of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortistation and impairment losses
(see note 2(h)(ii)). Other development expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
2(h)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives which are determined
by the directors to be finite. Capitalised
development costs with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives of not exceeding
five years.

Both the period and method of amortisation and
any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite are reviewed annually.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

g)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to income statement in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

h) Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivahles

Investments in debt and equity securities
and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtors;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an

equity instrument below its cost.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEE®HBE »

(Continued)
h) Impairment of assets (continued) hy BERE@®
i) Impairment of investments in debt and i) REBRBREZEHFZIBRER
equity securities and other receivables HiEWRIEZBIE (&)
(Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment WEEAZEFEELER - AE
loss is determined and recognised as AR E/BESZRATARETE
follows: RHER
— For unquoted equity securities — IR A AR R IRE
carried at cost, the impairment loss RARFBHME - WEHR
is measured as the difference FEEXN  OBEBE
between the carrying amount of the SHEESREERmEAE
financial asset and the estimated HTEFIARRBEMER
future cash flows, discounted at the BE(RRAEVBEEH
current market rate of return for a A /9 T % 0] ¥ % AL 3R)
similar financial asset where the ME 2 EZRE o ]RA
effect of discounting is material. BEREBESTS
Impairment losses for equity B o

securities are not reversed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

h) Impairment of assets (continued)

i) Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

For trade and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

Ifin a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through income statement.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®EBEK =

(Continued)
h) Impairment of assets (continued) hy BERE@®
i) Impairment of investments in debt and i) REBRBREABHZRER
equity securities and other receivables HiEWRIEZBIE (&)
(Continued)
For available-for-sale securities, the MAEEEBREMNE -

cumulative loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is
removed from equity and is
recognised in income statement.
The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in income
statement is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and
amortistation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on the
asset previously recognised in
income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in
income statement in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through income
statement. Any subsequent increase
in the fair value of such assets is
recognised directly in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of
available-for-sale debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase
in fair value can be objectively
related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in
such circumstances are recognised
in income statement.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included
within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off

directly are recognised in income

statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®EBEK =

(Continued)
h) Impairment of assets (continued) hy BERE@®
ii) Impairment of other assets i) HbEERE
Internal and external sources of information REEEREZRNLRINDE
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to BR - UHEE TINEERR
identify indications that the following assets HIRRE - L RTRER 2 R EES
may be impaired, an impairment loss BRESTHELHBLORD

previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment (other — Y - M RERECH
than properties carried at revalued BIEREG KBS ER 2
amounts); L ENE

— prepaid lease payments for land — EEBHTEMS A
under operating leases; ®

- intangible assets; and — BEVEE R

— investments in subsidiaries. — REBRFRZEE -

If any such indication exists, the asset’s WFEEAZETFR - BIEET

recoverable amount is estimated. In BEAIEISEE o o - 5t

addition, intangible assets that are not yet iR AR A 2 A R

available for use and intangible assets that BRI ERAFH o MEEEM

have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable T TWEBEGRENRR 98

amount is estimated annually whether or FFEEFTATREESEE -

not there is any indication of impairment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

h) Impairment of assets (continueq)

i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its net selling price
and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating

unit).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
income statement whenever the
carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of a cash-
generating unit are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
h) Impairment of assets (continueq)
i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.
A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to income statement in the
year in which the reversals are

recognised.
i) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

i)

j)

Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(h)(i)), except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(h)(i)).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

k)

)

m)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in income
statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using
the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

cash flow statement.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

n)

Employee benefits

i)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident
Funds required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and mandatory central pension
schemes organised by the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) government are
recognised as an expense in income
statement as incurred.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)
n) Employee benefits (continuea)
i) (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to income statement for the year
under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vests (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company'’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released
directly to the retained profits).

o) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in income statement
except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case they
are recognised in equity.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is expected tax payable on taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®EBEK =

(Continued)

0) Income tax (continued) 0) FriE®i @
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, REMIBARNELERIAGR T L&
and movements therein, are presented separately g B2 RTE TS - M
from each other and are not offset. Current tax RRARKAEEEET RN NITHE -
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and AINRAEHIEEERERARBEEE
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities NAER LA T RBIMG R - RIIRBHIIA
if, and only if, the Company or the Group has the BESBHEREMEAE  MELH
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets HEERBEHETLHIERE :

against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and —  HMARAHEEERAE X
liabilities, the Company or the Group NA) S ANE IR FRE A E
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to AREREERSERGE 3

realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and — [ MAREREEENARE  H
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes B — B R T B R B
levied by the same taxation authority on FRig#i s
either:

— the same taxable entity; or — FA—ERTEE : 3

— different taxable entities, which, in —  TEMNRBEE -5
each future period in which BRI EETERA RS
significant amounts of deferred tax BEHBEAETESE
liabilities or assets are expected to SORER I8 & B A LAY
be settled or recovered, intend to Ol &) G EARREARE - &
realise the current tax assets and FREERNBHBEE
settle the current tax liabilities on a MEEEARIES EL
net basis or realise and settle EREEMNRFEE
simultaneously. AafE-
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

p)

Provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®EBEK =

(Continued)

q) Revenue recognition q) UWEstiE:R
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits W BN BB RERALREE - B
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, Wzs R A (WEA) el F5TE - 1K

SR EA T TR B RER

if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in income statement as follows:

i)

iii)

Sales of computer software and hardware

Revenue is recognised when the Group has
transferred to the customer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods. Revenue excludes value-added and
business taxes, and is after deduction of
any goods returns and trade discounts.

Income from provision of maintenance and
other services

Revenue from maintenance and other
services is recognised at the time when the
service is performed.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholders’ rights
to receive payment are established.

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the
investments goes ex-dividend.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®EBEK =

(Continued)
q) Revenue recognition (continued) q)
iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

V) Value-added tax refund

Value-added tax refund is recognised when
the acknowledgement of refund from the
Tax Bureau has been received.

vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
balance sheet initially as deferred income
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in income statement on a
systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised in income
statement as revenue on a systematic basis
over the useful life of the asset.

r) Deferred income r)

Warranty costs are received in advance for the
whole period under warranty and are recognised
in the balance sheet initially as deferred income.
They will be deferred usually for one year and
subsequently recognised to income statement
when incurred.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional currency of
the Company is Hong Kong dollars and the
presentation currency is RMB. The reason for using
RMB as a presentation currency of the Company
is that the functional and presentation currency of
the substantive entities within the Group is RMB.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into RMB at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

s)

t)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005,
are translated into RMB at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a
separate component of equity. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired
before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in income
statement in the period which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as
being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

u) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the Group if:

)

Vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a
joint venture in which the Group is a

venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in note 2(u)(i) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings

with the entity.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

"))

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as
the secondary reporting format for the purposes
of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group entities within a single segment.
Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as
those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, general interest-bearing
borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing
expenses.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has where applicable applied
the following amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial assets
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(FRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,

Minimum Funding Requirements and their
interaction

The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior year adjustment is required.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new
and revised standards, amendments or interpretations
which have been issued but are not yet effect for annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2008.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13
HK(IFRIC) — Int 15

HK(FRIC) — Int 16
HK(FRIC) — Int 17

HK(FRIC) — Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs'

Presentation of Financial Statements?

Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements®

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation?

Eligible Hedged Items®

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate?

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?
Business Combinations®

Operating Segments?
Customer Loyalty Programmes*

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate?
Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation®
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners®

Transfers of Assets from Customers?

3.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5
which is effective for annual period beginning on or after

1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2008

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
October 2008

6 Effective for transfers of assets from customers received

on or after 1 July 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment
for changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

The Company’s directors anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results

and the financial position of the Group.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below:

a) Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset or derecognition; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test. The Group determines whether
an asset is impaired at least on an annual basis or
where an indication of impairment exists. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
asset. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the assets and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

4.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

b)

c)

d)

Useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
and residual values for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different from previous estimates, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2(h)(ii). The recoverable amounts of cash
generating units are determined based on value in
use calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other
assumptions underlying the value in use

calculations.
Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The
determination of the useful lives involves
management’s estimation. The Group re-assesses
the useful life of the intangible assets and, if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the amortisation in the
year and the estimate will be changed in the future

period.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

e)

f)

Impairment of receivables

The policy for impairment on receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectibility,
ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make

payments, additional impairment may be required.
Taxation

The Group is subject to various taxes in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for taxation. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that are initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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5. TURNOVER 5.

The principal activities of the Group are development and
sales of computer software, resale of computer hardware,
provision of system integration and maintenance services;
and manufacture and sales of liquefied coalbed gas.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
and services provided to customers, which excludes
value-added and business taxes, and is after deduction
of any goods returns and trade discounts. The amount of
each significant category of revenue recognised in
turnover during the year is as follows:

BRE

AEBEZ T REBREMEMFENHEE
BREAEE  RHARERNEERSE -
ARBIERBREERHE

EERBREATFERERRRH 2 HEE
W BIRIEER K2 X - ARMERERR
EREEFTNRIE - FAREXBERZ
BEREBAWmBHISENT -

2008 2007

—EENF ZETLF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®B T ARBF T

Sales of computer software B HE 10,527 29,810

Resale of computer hardware B EE 14,906 5,859

Maintenance and other services fees #1& K& H b RIS U B 13,165 13,730

Provision of liquefied coalbed gas RERLEEESR - —

38,598 49,399

6. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 6. HMESRIARE

2008 2007

—EEN\E —ETLEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARMBF T

Value-added tax refund HEMER 3,195 5,527

Net realised and unrealised (losses)/ BS#ER 2 &1 K

gains on trading securities AEIR (B518) W FE (2,536) 3,676

Interest income from bank deposits R 1T 17 2R B U A 513 261

Government grants received BT = B 353 233
Write back of impairment loss JE W BR FURE E5 18 7 11

on trade receivables 839 25

Net exchange gain HNEE H iR s T RE 161 141

Others H A, 152 200

2,677 10,063
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MR/ RAZ (BIR), 7

1.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 1.

(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:

(a)

(b)

(c)

i ¥

—EE/\FER

MBS HAT Z (B8R JafMEMBRIAT

£IB
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBF T
Staff costs (a BIRK
. . At
(excluding directors’ (RS K=o
emoluments in note 9) ZEEWS)
Salaries, wages and e 18K
other benefits H A 78 A 25,231 17,832
Retirement benefit scheme RARTEFIET B4 5K
contributions 1,950 1,322
Total staff costs BB TR 27,181 19,154
Other items (b) HMEE
Cost of inventories sold and EHFERIRHRRS
services rendered 2R 34,142 22,822
Auditor’s remuneration ZHA B 542 514
Depreciation e 2,140 1,570
Amortisation of prepaid lease BERHNTIEMN L
payments for land under e
operating leases 344 134
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESH 4,093 5,515
Impairment loss on property, mE - KBER
plant and equipment HEREEE 321 -
Impairment loss on intangible mREEREBEEBE
assets 3,017 —
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BRREE
plant and equipment Z BB 47 7
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEWBR SR 2 RUEE B 3,790 597
Write off of trade and other JFE AT B 0 e L R L
receivables RIEM - 1,694
Operating lease charges in T REFZEE
respect of land and buildings HHOEH 1,138 987
Finance costs (c) RERE
Interest expense on bank ARAFNEZHEEY
advances and other borrowings ROBEREMEE
wholly repayable within five years ZHRBRE 960 281
Other borrowing costs HinEEMRA 1,844 1,461
Total borrowing costs BEEMAR 2,804 1,742
Less: Amount capitalised into B BIEERIREARZRIE
construction in progress (BF 351 4(a) i)
(Note 14(a)(ii)) (901) —
1,903 1,742
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8.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

a) Income tax in the consolidated
income statement represents:

8.

HRERBRZMEN

a) HEEBRZMEH

18 :

2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBF T
Current tax — B EA B 18 —
PRC Enterprise FEGCEMBH
Income Tax (“EIT”) (TE%FmEH
Provision for the year I JE R 1,680 2,115
Underprovision for the MEFERETR
prior years 666 938
2,346 3,053
Deferred taxation EREIE
Origination and reversal of T E R RR
temporary differences e
(note 31) (BH3E31) (2,022) 412
Income tax charge B 324 3,465
Note: B 5T

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 and reduced corporate
profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% which is effective
from the year of assessment 2008/09. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group has
no estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31
December 2008 and 2007.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions are calculated at

the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
|NCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

a)

Income tax in the consolidated
income statement represents:
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress promulgated the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “New Tax Law”), which
would become effective on 1 January 2008. Further, on
6 December 2007, the State Council released the
Implementation Rules to the Enterprise Income Tax Law
(the “Implementation Rules”).

According to the New Tax Law, from 1 January 2008,
the standard EIT rates for enterprises in the PRC will be
reduced from 33% to 25%. However, an “encouraged
hi-tech enterprise” will continue to be entitled to a
reduced EIT rate of 15%.

Under the New Tax Law which became effective from 1
January 2008 and in accordance with “Notification of the
State Council on Carrying out the Transitional Preferential
Policies concerning Enterprise Income Tax” (Guo Fa [2007]
No. 39) promulgated by the State Council on 26 December
2007, an entity established before 16 March 2007 that was
entitled to preferential tax treatment prior to the New Tax
Law will be subject to a transitional tax rate beginning in
the year 2008 (“Transitional tax Rate”) before the new EIT
rate of 25% applies. For companies currently enjoying a
reduced tax rate of 15%, the Transitional Tax Rate is 18%,
20%, 22%, 24% and 25% for 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011
and 2012 onwards respectively.

Any unutilised tax holidays can continue until expiry while
tax holidays will be deemed to start from 1 January 2008,
even if the company is not yet turning to a profit position.

In addition, according to the New Tax Law, the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to withholding tax on
the dividends paid to their foreign investors out of profits
earned subsequent to 1 January 2008.

a)
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8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8.
|NCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

b)

Reconciliation between income
tax charge and accounting (loss)/
profit at applicable tax rates is as

IFeBEaRZHER @

b) HERBENEZE
Bz HEEE (B518)
i 2 EfRRI0T :

follows:
2008 2007
—gENE e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARMEETF T
(Loss)/profit before income tax 1Bk TS FL A (B518) /3% 7 (33,261) 965
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before 3% Fr £ B 5 i@ A 7 K = &
income tax, calculated at the Z B FEH A (B8
rates applicable to the BRI
countries concerned (5,654) (824)
Tax effect of non-deductible EE 1553
expenses ZRIA & 4,026 919
Tax effect of non-taxable income B/BREF U 7 FREFE (753) (28)
Tax effect of tax losses not AR TR IB S B
allowed for tax deduction BB E 1,954 1,374
Tax effect of unused tax losses R HERR 1% A {3 A Fi 8
not recognised EENH G2 801 597
Tax effect of utilisation of REREEARIEERE
tax losses not recognised WS B = (205)
(Over)/underprovision of deferred  ¥81E & EiEIER B
tax expenses in prior years (R BETR (575) 694
Underprovision of current tax in 87 F BN HAF 1B
prior years BESR 666 938
Tax effect of change in tax rates T REB) 2 HiFH 2 (141) —
Income tax charge s RifE 2 324 3,465
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 161

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

9. EFM&

RIBEBRFHEPIE161IEEE 2 ESMe M
N

2008 2007

—EENF ZETLF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBF T

Fees we 135 146

Salaries and other emoluments e N H Ath BN 1,782 2,169

Bonus 4L - —
Retirement benefit scheme RIKTE AT E

contributions R - —

1,917 2,315

Details of directors’ emoluments by individual for the year
ended 31 December 2008 are as follows:

BE_TTEN\F+_A=T—RHLFE @
AT ZEZEMESFHBENT

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
emoluments contributions
Fees o Bonus BIREF Total
we H AL HE Ea3 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT
Executive directors HiTES
Wang Zhong Sheng TARE - 890 - - 890
Shi Liang iR - 712 - - 712
Non-executive directors FHTES
Chang Jian (note) (M) - - - - -
Kwok Shun Tim BapE - 178 - - 178
Ye Jinxing Eo M - 2 - - 2
Independent non-executive @ BIFHITEE
directors
Yan Chang Ming B & 45 - — — 45
Luo Wei Kun BIE 45 - — — 45
Pang Yuk Fong ZER 45 - - - 45
135 1,782 - — 1,917

Note: Resigned on 15 October 2008

Mz - R-ZZENF+ATHBBHE-
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9. E;ﬁﬂlﬁ (%)

Details of directors’ emoluments by individuals for the year HE_ZZ+tF+_A=1+—HLEFE @
ended 31 December 2007 are as follows: AT ZEEZMESFBET :
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
emoluments contributions

Fees e Bonus BB Total

ok H fth £ Ef A HE K3 Ht

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTE ARBTT AREBTT ARETT

Executive directors HITES

Wang Zhong Sheng TERE - 970 - - 970
Shi Liang iR - 776 - - 776
Non-executive directors FHTES

Chang Jian BE - 194 - - 194
Kwok Shun Tim P E - 194 - - 194
Ve Jinxing EoH - 35 - - 35

Independent non-executive @ BIFHTEE

directors

Yan Chang Ming B & 48 - — — 48
Luo Wei Kun BueE 49 - - - 49
Pang Yuk Fong 215 49 - - - 49

146 2,169 — — 2,315
During the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, REZ2-_ZEZENFN_FTT+F+-_A=1+
no directors waived any emoluments. No inducement —HIEFE  BEESHRETAHS - RE
payments to join or upon joining the Group or as ETENFR_ZFTLF+_HA=1+—H
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to IEFE - WERETESE T B ERA M
any director for the years ended 31 December 2008 and AREB K MAREBR 2 28 BB

o

2007. & o
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=Ry o
10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 10. ®REHF AL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two hEsEeSFATHE MECEZLF M
(2007: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed B)RES  BEZHMERAHFRE - Hib
in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of =R (CETEF =R ENATZHEE
the other three (2007: three) individuals are as follows: BT -
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥4 + T& M HEMiE7F 2,717 1,595
Retirement benefit scheme RIRTEAET B R
contributions - —
2,717 1,595
For the year ended 31 December 2008, the emoluments HE_ZZ)N\F+A=1T—HIEFE =
of the three (2007: three) individuals with the highest H(CEEEF = R) EaFEMALT 2B
emoluments are within the following bands: ENTFTUTHE :
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE N
RMB Nil to RMB890,000 ARBZTEARY
(equivalent to approximately 890,0007T (FHE R4
HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000) Z 47T 21,000,000/ 7T) 2 3
RMB890,001 to RMB1,335,000 AR#890,001LE AR
(equivalent to approximately 1,335,0007C (A8 A 4

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000) 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T) 1 -
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FAFHRRREMGESIR

11.

12.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of approximately
RMB10,558,000 (2007: loss of RMB10,013,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

11.

ARRIERBEREIERAEER

BEERA

NAVEBREARE2EBRBOARYE
10,558,000 (ZZEZ+F : [FEAREK
10,013,0007T) °

Company.
LOSS PER SHARE 12. BEEIR
a) Basic loss per share a) BREXEIE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based BREREEDRAQR LT AERR
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity RIEEE B4 A R#33,585,0007T (=
shareholders of the Company of approximately TT+F 0 ARK2,500,0007T0) K& F
RMB33,585,000 (2007: RMB2,500,000) and the WE ETERKRME T H
weighted average number of 609,160,000 (2007: 609,160,000 (= =T F :
514,728,000) ordinary shares in issue during the 514,728,0000%) 5+ & - HFt BT :
year, calculated as follows:
2008 2007
—zE)f —EELE
’000 000
F FB&
Issued ordinary shares R—A—BZ
at 1 January BT T mAR 567,600 473,000
Effect of issue of shares by B BRMDE ST
share placement f&in 2 &2 & 41,560 41,728
Weighted average number of W+ =-A=+—H2Z
ordinary shares at LR N T
31 December 609,160 514,728
b) Diluted loss per share by SEEEE

There were no dilutive potential shares during 2008
and 2007, and diluted loss per share is the same
as basic loss per share.

A

T N\FR-TTLFIEBEE
EEBERD - MERk#EEERESK
EAREEMAER -
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business segments. As all of the Group’s revenue and
results were substantially derived from the PRC, no
geographical segment information is presented.

Business segments
The Group has the following major business segments:

Computer software . Development and sales of
computer software relating to
securities and financial
industries in the PRC

Computer hardware . Resale of computer
hardware
Maintenance and . Provision of repairs and
other services maintenance and other

technical support services for
customers

Liquefied coalbed gas : Manufacture and sales of
liquefied coalbed gas

13.

SEREH
SHWAREAEE 2 £H 5B - HRA

SEZWERFEAMBMHHRERE - #A
EE2IMEDBER -

EH 2B

AREZ EBEBH BOIE

BHHE ¢ EFERERHEEES
REBEAM2 BN
fF

BEBHE . SETREE

BIEREMRT : REPRMHEEREE
DA R At 452 7 32 9% AR 75

RERES ¢ EEREERCEER
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 13. ZERE2 R =
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by business REEILEBDEEI D 2 Wam R EE DT
segments is as follows: K
Maintenance and Liquefied
Computer Software ~ Gomputer Hardware other services coalbed gas Consolidated total
e LG EHEL EBREMES REEER st
2008 2007 2007 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
= LS TR IERLE ZRREE b S35 E N CERE
GO0 RMB'000 BGLIEHONN  RMB'000 BRGLIEHINN  RMB'000 [RGLLEHNN  RMB'000 BRI  RMB'000
ARETT PNl ARSTT BNEe A RE T PNRREl ARKTT BN EOA ARET T PN E
Revenue from external customers - RESNARF 2 W& 10527 29810 14,906 5809 13,165 13730 - - 38598 4939
Other revenue Efplis 3195 5507 - - - - - - 3195 5507
Total it 13722 35337 14,906 5809 13,165 13730 - - M793 54926
Seqment results Pt (@042 5776 (3,029) (178 6146 4647  (10,288) (1544 (27,294 8,701
Unallocated operating income K AREE
and expenses LINE (4,084 (5,99
Finance costs BARE (1,008 (1742
(Loss)/proft before income tax B ATE R (B /47 (33,261) 95
Income tax &R (324 (3.469)
Loss for the year REEEE (33,585 (2,500)
Depreciation & 1,133 615 255 140 306 566 50 24 1,744 1,345
Unallocated depreciation ROLAE 396 25
2,140 1,570
Amortisation of prepaic lease ~ EERHTEM
payments for land under TiHsER
operating leases ‘ 100 il 39 121 201 - 344 134
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EF/EEES 4003 5515 - - - - - - 409 5515
Impaiment loss on property; VER e
plant and equipment BERE 202 - 11 - 108 - - - 321 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets & EEREEE 3,017 - - - - - - -7 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - K
plant and equipment LEEEE 2% 7 16 - 6 - - - 41 7
Impairent loss on trade recelvables BT HEE I 3,521 507 245 - 2% - - - 379 507
White off of trade and BUES R
other receivables B - 167 - 2 - - - - - 1%
Wite back of impaiment loss A ZNA(E
on trade receivables FEAMD 817) (25) 22) - - - - - (839) (25)
Operating lease charges in respect T RIEF 2%
of land and buildings R0ER 80 110 60 2 14 R - - 154 162
Unallocated operating lease charges % AR EEHNER 984 825

1,138 987
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by business

13. 98E2HK »

AREEIR KR D HRE D 2 Waas MR A D 40

segments is as follows: (Continued) T (&)
Maintenance and Liquefied
Computer Software ~ Computer Hardware other services coalbed gas Consolidated total
H B EREH BBREMRE R EER it

2008 2007 2008

2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

CRRNF EERR&d “2F/\F EEEsad C3F)\F il C5F/\F il T3/ mEiies

GO AvB000 RGIEHION  RMB'000 FRGLIERNNN  RMB'000 RLHNN  RMB000 SGLELLY RMB'000

ARETT PNRATl ARSTT BN EA ARET T PNRATN ARETT BNRESH ARET T PNRE0

Segment assets AiEE 16,558 41761 10207 7897 14910 17778 168812 67585 210487 135028
Unallocated assets RONEE 8652 27,628
Total assets hiE 239,139 162,649
Segment liabilties AiE% 3265 13444 3048 2704 5811 8143 34850 19850 74969 44150
Bank and other borrowings BOREbEE - 48 - 944 - 212 40,000 — 40000 7960
Unallocated fabilties AIRAR 4040 3880
Total iabites 8k 119,009 55,990
Capital expenditure B1A% 468 558 BT 1961 of 2245 1402 15630| 124017| | 20304
Unallocated capital expendiwre ~ FAEERER 8 | 302
124925 23416
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BRI

a) The Group a) AEH
Buildings Furniture
held for Leasehold Computer and Motor  Construction
ownuse improvements equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
BFERZET HERLIE ERRE BERRE RE ERIR EH

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR  AREBTR  ARETI  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Cost RE
At 1 January 2007 RZEZt+E
-A—-H 1,673 919 2,487 726 789 - 6,594
Additions RE 3,632 1,960 761 1,482 2,287 11,130 21,252
Disposals e - (680) (225) 99) - - (998)
Reclassification i - 38 (38) - - - -
Exchange adjustments EHAE - - 8] Ul - - (10)
At 31 December 2007 RZZTLE
and 1 January 2008 +-E=t+-H
RZETN\E
-fA-H 5,306 2,237 2,982 2,108 3,076 11,130 26,838
Additions (note (ii) RE (M) - - 664 488 - 112,768 113,920
Disposals e - - (727) (100) - - (827)
Exchange adustments B % - () (5) (6) - - (16)
At 31 December 2008 RZZZIN\F
+-A=1-H 5,305 2,232 2,914 2,490 3,076 123,898 139,915
Accumulated depreciation 23 FERHE
and impairment
At 1 January 2007 RZETLE
-A-H 206 591 1,362 482 243 - 2,884
Charge for the year RERT 278 297 539 179 277 - 1570
Written back on disposals (K E&E - (680) (217) (78) - - (975)
Exchange adjustments EHAE - - o) o) - - ]
At 31 December 2007 RZZTLE
and 1 January 2008 +-E=t+-H
RZETN\E
-A-H 484 208 1,680 579 520 - 3471
Charge for the year REETH 246 472 565 353 504 - 2,140
Written back on disposals ~ HE&E - - (682) (95) - - (777)
Impairment loss (note () FIERE (i (v) 321 - - - - - 321
Exchange adjustments EHAE - 2 o) ) - - (12)
At 31 December 2008 RZEZNE
+-A=+-8 1,051 678 1,559 831 1,024 - 5,143
Net book value RERE
At 31 December 2008 RZZIN\F
+-A=1-H 4,254 1,554 1,355 1,659 2,052 123,898 134,772

At 31 December 2007 RZEZLF
+ZR=1-H 4,821 2,029 1,302 1,529 2,556 11,130 23,367
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% - BBREME o

(Continued)
a) The Group (continued) a) EEHE#®

() The buildings held for own use are situated (i) FHEB R 2 BFALEH B+
on land held under medium-term leases in AR AEz T o
the PRC.

(ii) At 31 December 2008, the net book value (ii) RZEENF+ZA=+—
of buildings pledged for the Group’s bank B - REEKPLAERERITE
facilities was nil (2007: RMB4,799,000). EzBFREFERAT(ZF

ZHF: AR¥4,799,000
TT) °

(i) Additions of construction in progress for the iy BEZZEENFTZA=1—
year ended 31 December 2008 includes AEFEZAERIEBZAER
interest expense on other borrowing wholly BRARAFRZHERE 2 i
repayable within five years of approximately BEZMNERIHARMK
RMB901,000 (2007: Nil). 901,000 L (ZEZ A5 -

) o

(iv)  As at 31 December 2008, the directors vy RZZEENF+ZA=+—
assessed the recoverable amount of A E52EZTHEETES
buildings by reference to valuation report RAFRE 2 HERS - BIE
performed by Asset Appraisal Limited on THRBEMER TSR 52T
the basis of their open market value by BRERESD 2 AMAMET
reference to observable prices in recent BTEFZAINEREE - BE
market transactions in comparable EERAAA—EBIEE
properties. Asset Appraisal Limited, is a firm HERF  AEEETEES
of independent professional valuers, who BREMBEEres  WHH
has among their staff associate members BT 2 2 B AR R AR
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with B o IREBF L EFHTE
recent experience in the location and EBE ARK321,0007T (=
category of the properties being valued. ETEF T)BFAER
Based on the assessment, the directors ]

concluded that an impairment loss of
RMB321,000 (2007: Nil) was charged to the
income statement.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% - BBREME o

(Continued)
h) The Company b) ZAAT
Furniture
Leasehold Computer and Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE#EBEIRE ElZE HRARRE AE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR AREFTL AREFTT
Cost RE
At 1 January 2007 RZZZTLF
—H—H — 75 112 330 517
Additions NG 81 23 — 1,332 1,436
Exchange adjustments X AR - @) (7) - 9)
At 31 December 2007 RZZTLF
and 1 January 2008 +ZA=+—H
L=ZETNF
—H—H 81 96 105 1,662 1,944
Additions NE - 8 - - 8
Disposals HE - (37) - - (37)
Exchange adjustments ~ [E X % (5) @) (6) - (13)
At 31 December 2008 RZZTN\F
+-fA=+—H 76 65 99 1,662 1,902
Accumulated depreciation E:iTE
At 1 January 2007 RZZET+F
—H—H - 38 81 16 135
Charge for the year AEEY M 7 14 21 178 220
Exchange adjustments i3k - () (4) - 9)
At 31 December 2007 RZESLF
and 1 January 2008 +ZR=+—H
LZZENE
—H—H 7 47 98 194 346
Charge for the year AEEXH 39 12 2 332 385
Written back on disposals & £l - (37) - - (37)
Exchange adjustments 5 AE (2) 2) 6) - (10)
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF
+-A=1+-H 44 20 94 526 684
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF
+-A=1+-E 32 45 5 1,136 1,218
At 31 December 2007 RZESLF
+-ZA=f+—H 74 49 7 1,468 1,598
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR 15. BEHHTHRALhES

LAND UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The net book value of the Group’s prepaid lease payments
for land under operating leases is analysed as follows:

AEBGEROTEMN LS 2 REFE
DT -

The Group
KEE
2008 2007
—BENE e
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARET T
Net book value at 1 January R—A—BZEmFE 3,685 1,655
Additions INE 11,005 2,164

14,690 3,819

Amortisation for the year IR [ 8 (344) (134)
Net book value at 31 December R+-—A=+—HBzZEEEFE 14,346 3,685
Less: Current portion B BDEAER (D (363) (143)
Non-current portion JEBNEREL (7 13,983 3,542

The prepaid lease payments for land under operating
leases in respect of land are held under medium-term
leases and situated in the PRC. At 31 December 2008,
the cost of the prepaid lease payments for land under
operating leases is RMB15,050,000 (2007:
RMB4,045,000).

At 31 December 2008, the Group was in the process of
applying to the relevant government authority for the land
use right certificate in respect of a piece of land located in
the PRC at net book value of RMB10,804,000 (2007: Nil).

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

BT 2 FEN LA S TR BHE L=
B HURTE R-_ZTTN\E+_A=+
—B gEHEOHTzENTHASREAAEA
R#¥15,050,000C (ZZEZ+F : AR
4,045,0007T) °

RZZZENF+A=+—H AEELEH
UATEZz —tEERARBARERG LT
WEAEE ZLzREFERARK
10,804,000 (ZEZT+H4F : F) o

AEREHEBREEBRRR ZTHRAXY
E\E o
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

. BB E

The Group xEH
Computer
software
development
costs
BB B R R
RMB’000
ARBF T
Cost R{E
At 1 January 2007, RZTEE+F—H—A8 -
31 December 2007, —EELF+A=+—8"
1 January 2008 and —EENEF-A-BRK
31 December 2008 —EENF+ZA=+—H 29,069
Accumulated amortisation and i # & REE
impairment
At 1 January 2007 R-_ZEZE+HF—H—H 16,444
Amortisation for the year PN g 5,515
At 31 December 2007 and R-ZZALF+_A=1+—HK
1 January 2008 —EENF—A—H 21,959
Amortisation for the year REZHH 4,093
Impairment loss EEE 3,017
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF+_A=+—H 29,069

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2008

EEEE
R-ZZEZENF+-_A=1+—H —

At 31 December 2007

R-_ZEZE+F+-_A=+—H 7,110
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16.

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
The Group (continuea)

Amortisation of intangible assets is recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of not exceeding five years.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in cost of
sales in the consolidated income statement.

The recoverable amount of computer software
development costs has been determined based on a value
in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering one year period, which is the
remaining life of the computer software development costs
held by the Group. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflow/
outflow which include budgeted revenue and gross
margin. Such estimation is based on the past performance
and management’s expectations of the return on
computer software development costs. The directors of
the Company considered that it is unlikely that the
computer software development costs have any future
value in use and therefore the carrying amount of these
computer software development cost of approximately
RMB3,017,000 (2007: Nil) were fully impaired.

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group paid a total sum of
approximately RMB7,000,000 (2007: RMB34,600,000) as
deposits for the acquisition of certain property, plant and
equipment, which comprise of two sets of plant and
machinery for two production plants for the manufacture
of liquefied coalbed gas in Shanxi Province PRC.

16.

17.

E\EEE »
XEE »)

BEESENTBEAF 2 AERSF
HANBERERBR/AX

AEFHEEIHRNGEBRAEREERLIAT
E\E o

TP BN B B B AR 2 AT UK (B 3R R TY AR B 155 R
BEAEHEET - Lt ENERAREER
BABR—FHMA AIAEEFE 2 B
HRENAZHTFR) EZREE 2R
enEEA - FREBFEFECHMES
BRERSRA/ ML ZEEA - BIEE
Bz KERER - BB DIREATR
BREBEHEMRGFAERARE R 2 B
MmiEH - RARIEEZRA @+ EISEIFRIEK
ATKAJ BT AZEREBE Btz
EEMRHFAERALN ARKES,017,0007T
ZETLF D) ZEREEE2EFELR
{Eo

BiEhR - BBRERMEZ
Rl &

REE  AEBEZHHAREK7,000,0007T
(ZZZ+F : AR¥34,600,0007T) SAEA
WIEE T wRERECTS  HF e
E RIS M ERCHEERAEE LR
MRS R R o

105



106

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 75 4R 3R P 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Renminbi) i Z —TZNF+ - A=+ —HIFE (UAARKYE)

17.

18.

19.

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

It is expected that the Group will invest approximately
RMB320,000,000 to pursue the liquefied coalbed gas
business and the directors of the Company expects that
the production plants will start commercial production in
2009.

Capital commitments of the Group contracted for in
respect of the remaining unpaid balances of approximately
RMB85,400,000 (2007: RMB122,710,000) for the above
acquisition are disclosed in note 36(a) to the financial
statements.

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF
INTERESTS IN LAND UNDER
OPERATING LEASES

During the year, the Group paid a total sum of
approximately RMB1,311,000 (2007: RMB11,549,000) as
deposits for the acquisition of interests in land in Shanxi
Province PRC which will be held for own use under

operating leases.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

17.

18.

19.

IiEPE  BEBRRMZ
A& o

REFETEF % E AR 320,000,0007TH
REBBEEBRES  AAREEREHE
EIBER_ESZNFRABMELE -

il EE R I 8REE A B AR 185,400,000
TL(ZEZT+F : ARK122,710,000T) * &
SERZFBECITHOZEAFRERTBHRE
B 3 36(a)H 15 FE -

BREEEN T IER
Z &l &

KEE KEBEAHERIMNHOARE
1,311,000 (ZZFEZLHF : AR
11,549,0007T) {EAUREEF B L PR E T HhiEs

Unlisted shares, at cost

LM - HRE

ZEE R BRESEROBEES
A o
RELRZRE
The Company
ZNNS
2008 2007
—EENE —ET
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT 7 AREF T
110,233 67,992
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. WMIBATIZ®/E =
(Continued)
At as 31 December 2008, the details of the subsidiaries RZEENF+_A=+—H0 HWERAZ

HIEWT

are as follows:

Proportion of equity interest

BRELLH
Particulars of issued
and paid up share/ Group’s
Place of registered effective
incorporation/ capital interest Principal activities/place of

Name of subsidiary establishment BROTRBNRE/ FEE Direct Indirect  operation

WEARER EMAL/RueS  EREAHE ERER B 5E3 TEER/SELY

Shine Science & Technology British Virgin Islands 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% - Investment holding/

(BVI) Company Limited (‘BVI") of US$0.01 each Hong Kong
AERLEE 100,000% &% REBR,/BE
([RERLES]) AEOOIETZEBR
Inboom Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - Not yet commenced business/
ABRAES US$1.00 each Hong Kong
1R &R DERRER/ B8
HE1.00ET BBk

Fujian Shine Science & Technology PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100% Development and sales of
Co., Ltd. (note (a)) FE RMB12,500,000 computer software, resale of

BRMENHARAA (M (@) BaiE-v: computer hardware, provision

AR ¥12,500,0007C of system integration and
maintenance/PRC
RERHEERTN EEEH
BAERREZGEAR
EBRE/HE

Shanghai Shine Science & PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100% Development and sales of
Technology Co., Limited (note (b)) el RMB5,000,000 computer software, resale of

DEFEFREERAR (M () FHEX computer hardware, provision

AR %5,000,0007 of system integration and
maintenance/PRC
RERHEERN EEEH
BHERREZGEAR
EBR/HE

Fuzhou Xinwangluo Network PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100% Resale of computer hardware
Company Limited (note (c)) HE RMB1,000,000 and network installation/PRC

BMFERREERAF (M (©) FMER BEIMEMR

ARE1,000,0007T ETBRRE

Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai Energy PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% - Manufacture and sales of
Development Company Limited g HK$37,000,000 liquefied coalbed gas/PRC
(note (d) HREA BBEBREEREE /T

LRGBS ERERERERAR 37,000,000 7T

(Bt (o)

Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% - Manufacture and sales of
Development Company Limited g HK$80,000,000 liquefied coalbed gas/PRC
(note (¢) HREA BIEBREERBE/+E

LENKIERERERERAR 80,000,000 7T

(B (o)
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Note:
(@) Fujian Shine Science & Technology Co., Ltd. is a wholly-

owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC.

Shanghai Shine Science & Technology Co., Limited is a
wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC.
The Group nominated Ms. Gu Yun (“Ms. Gu”), the ex-
chairman of the Company to hold a 10% equity interest
in trust for and on behalf of the Group.

Fuzhou Xinwangluo Network Company Limited is a
wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC.
The Group nominated Ms. Gu to hold a 33% equity
interest in trust for and on behalf of the Group.

Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai Energy Development
Company Limited (“Yangcheng Energy”) is a wholly-
owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC. The
registered capital of Yangcheng Energy was
HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB38,800,000) of which HK$37,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB35,411,000) was paid up by the
Group as at 31 December 2008.

Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy Development Company
Limited (“Qinshui Energy”) is a wholly-owned foreign

enterprise established in the PRC. The registered capital
of Qinshui Energy was HK$80,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB74,804,000) which was fully paid up
by the Group as at 31 December 2008.

19. WMIBATRIZRE »

fi i

BEMERRARARANRTBEKRIIZ 2
SNE R -

LEERERNBRERATDA/RPENTLZ
2HEDE - AEBEREBARFNEER
Ext ([BELD AERTARKREEE
HBEE10%E S °

BINHERBEERAD SR EKLZ
2HEDE -  AEBERBEL LGRS
ARERAEEFTFE ELIB3% D °

ILPERG M EZR AL IR B R B IR A 7] ([F5 6
B BRFREKIZ Z2INERE - B
B2 T & AN £40,000,00058 7T (FHE R
AR #38,800,0007T) © HAF - REBRZ
TEENEF+ A=+ —HE SN
37,000,000 L (HERHDARKE
35,411,0007T) °

P KIEZREERE R AR A A (DUKEE
R BRPBEKLZ Z2INERE - JKEE
JR 2 511 & 78 A80,000,0008 7T (FEE 4
ARH74,804,00070) - EAAEER =T
ENF+_A=F+—HHR -
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. M HEKRSE

The Group
rEE
2007
2T
RMB’000
ARBTT

Unlisted equity securities, at cost I LETRAE S - LKA 4,800 —

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group HE_ZZN\FT+_A=1T—HILFE rXEEE
acquired 8% equity interests, in LU B ED R B A F) W L FREEYRERAR ([BEWR]) 8% -
(“BEYR) at a consideration of RMB4,800,000. The REAARE4,800,0007 ° Al HEREFTER
available-for-sale investment represents investment in FERIGFMA L 2 BB 2 ELEMRARS - 25
unlisted equity securities issued by private entity BHEREGEZEZEBUKARREZ - RAREE
incorporated in PRC. They are measured at cost less ~ AFEZFHABEIEE KR B ARFEER A%
impairment at each balance sheet date because therange ~ FEH 2 A FETE A SEHAE -

of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that

the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their

fair values cannot be measured realiably.

21. TRADING SECURITIES 21. BHEFH
The Group
A K

2008 2007
—2EN\E —RELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR T T

Listed securities, at market value &% > EHE

— Listed equity securities — BAZ ETRAFES
in Hong Kong 1,179 3,488
— Listed equity securities — Bz ETRAES
in the PRC 364 825
1,543 4,313
Unlisted securities ELEHES
— Managed investment funds —HEZEBREES (M)
in the PRC (note) 14,528 —

16,071 4,313
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21. TRADING SECURITIES (continued) 21. BH8F »

Note: The managed investment funds are managed by ek : BEREES AT ERELEEE =
professional investment managers and mainly comprise DEESHPRET  ROTLREMSRIERE
securities issued by central banks, banks and other ROEBERETIES - FLMEERE
financial institutions and corporate entities. Fair values A2 ATFETBESKLEREM - HitE
of unlisted managed investment funds are provided by —MRIBIBEBBEZF MO MR KIAE
fund managers. The valuation is generally based upon 1T °
the market return and performance of the underlying
securities.

22. INVENTORIES 22. &R
. . =
Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet comprise: RIEEBEEARBRRZTERSRE
The Group
rEE

2008 2007
—2EN\EF —RELHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBTT

Computer hardware and B REEEMEA ZBRH
accessories acquired for resale 969 769
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EUgIRF B H th fE U Fh 1A
The Group The Company
KEE P N/NECT|

2008 2007 2008 2007
SLICN =z BELUCE i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETE PN AR% T PNLESE

Amounts due from JE UL FfT 8 2 )
subsidiaries (note (a)) B (M3 (@) - - 22,686 16,609
Trade receivables (note (d)) JRE U5 BR 5K (Bt 33 (0)) 3,029 8,272 — —
Amounts due from securities FEU B H 41T
broker firms (note (b)) A (K 3E (o) 55 6,871 — —
Other receivables H b fE 0B 1,440 2,112 186 663
4,524 17,255 22,872 17,272
Prepayments and deposits FERRERIZS 14,106 6,918 2,362 2,773
18,630 24,173 25,234 20,045
Note: 5T -
(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, (a) FEWHI B A R RIE AR - R BWERE
interest-free and repayable on demand. ZREE o
(b) During the year, the Group traded securities through (o) AEE AEEBBIBHFELTEER
securities broker firms. As at 31 December 2008, a total FoRZZEZ)\F+-A=1+—H " LK
amount of approximately RMB55,000 (2007: BHL AT 2 B BEEL A AR KES5,000
RMB6,871,000) was due from securities broker firms. T (ZZZT+4F + ARKE,871,0000T) ° 7%
The amounts are unsecured and bear interest at FREREER  RBITMBER T B
prevailing market interest rates and can be withdrawn A ANEBRERIRMA -
by the Group at any time.
() All of the trade and other receivables, apart from () MRIEMNFRIERIZE SN - TRERFTH AR 3K
prepayments and deposits, are expected to be recovered ME A ERGRIES R —FAKE -

within one year.
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(Continued) (&)
Note: (Continued) Mt - (&)
(d) The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as follows: (d) EWERRZBRR DT
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—Z2ENE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
Within 1 month 1EAR 1,788 3,052
More than 1 month but less 1EA%E3EAR
than 3 months 653 3,087
More than 3 months but less 3EA#%EEAN
than 6 months 588 2,079
More than 6 months but less 68 A& E12E AR
than 12 months 719 336
More than 12 months 1218 A 1& 6,915 4,401
10,663 12,955

Less: Impairment loss on trade  J& : JEWER X 2 M EE 1B

receivables (note (e)) (Pt5E(e) (7,634) (4,683)
3,029 8,272
The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 days to AEE ML TRFPOE180BEZEEH -
180 days to its customers. The Group may, on a case AEBAESERRELE - RRFHED
by case basis and after evaluation of the business BRLEEE EREFPEREREER -

relationship and credit worthiness, extend the credit

period upon the customers’ request.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BER R EMEKRIE
(Continued) (&)

Note: (Continued) BoeE © ()

(¢)  The movement of impairment loss on trade receivables © FEMERFORERB B ZEMT
is as follows:
The Group
rE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
At 1 January mn—H—H 4,683 4,111
Write back of impairment loss FARER 2
on trade receivables FEW AR FURE B 18
during the year (839) (25)
Impairment loss on trade FNHER 2 FEU
receivables recognised BRFCREEE
during the year 3,790 597
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 7,634 4,683

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
debtors directly (see note 2(j)).

Write back of impairment loss on trade receivables
represents the recovery of the consideration received in
relation to the impaired trade receivables. An allowance
for non-recoverable amount that had been made in
previous years was written back accordingly.

As at 31 December 2008, trade receivables of the Group
amounting to RMB7,634,000 (2007: RMB4,683,000)
were individually determined to be impaired and full
provision had been made. These individually impaired
receivables had been outstanding for over 180 days as
at the balance sheet date or were due from companies
with financial difficulties. Accordingly, specific allowances
for doubtful debts of RMB3,790,000 (2007:
RMB597,000) were recognised. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

FEMBR Tk 2 BB B Ty IR A B AR 50 8%
MEAN SR B AU B B AT RE AR IR BR S - 1E
BEIEI T+ 5 1 5 18 B 4 B KR K M
(RM5E2(3) -

JRE Mo B R S 468 93 120 45 Mk [ 7t DL 1 P LR
BRI UER 2 (ME - RUARTSEE(ER 21
AR EREEEC A ERE -

R-ZBENE+-_A=1+—0 ~X&EEZ
FEWERRA R 7,634,000 (ZZEZT £
F - AR¥4,683,0007T) B 1 BIE E AR
B WIEL28EE  RNEER - 5@
REE FE U BR S HE /R BB 180H + &
RUABRE 2 AEl 2R - AL+ RERZ
BRI E A R®3,790,000L (ZEZE
F: ARM597,00070) BEAEHER o AEH
WEFH AR SEH 2 T AERR -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
Note: (Continued)
(e) (Continued)

The factors which the Group considered in determining
whether these trade receivables were individually
impaired include the following:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- receivables that have been outstanding for a
certain period;

- the Group granting to the debtor, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the debtor’s financial
difficulty, a concession that the Group would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from the debtor since their initial
recognition, although the decrease cannot yet
be identified including:

- adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors of the Group; and

- economic conditions that correlate with

defaults on the trade receivables of the
Group.

23. FEUHR % B B ft PR Uy 3 1R

(&)
MisE : (8)
() (&)

FEEREEZFRBERZE @R
ERMEBZEZRMT :

- BEHAMRERWBNE

— FEMRIRE R —E B

— AEBRREEBAZTBRESH
ZRESERIER B TEBA—
EARKETEEMBER T I EEEZ
E B

— BSASSRESHEITEMYEE
8

— AEEZ EMBERERFIEREIR
RBARR - EAARKESRE
HIRATFFEZ M - B M RAE
A BRI

— REBBEBHEAZ AR

HIBAREE : R

— B RN S B R R SRR
8 2 AR
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

()

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are

23. FEUHR % B B ft PR Uy 3 1R

(#&)
BIsE - (#)
(f) ROBE FE YRR R

1851 K £k [F139 32 78 AR R (B 10 e W BR 3 2 BiR

oI
as follows:
The Group
REH
2008 2007
LI —TTis
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
Neither past due nor impaired REE R AR RBE 3,029 8,272
Less than 1 month past due w0 BR DA 1E A - -
1 to 3 months past due wHR1 =318 A - -
Over 3 months past due i B A A 3 1R H - —
3,029 8,272

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

24. TAX RECOVERABLE

REPRABRENBBERSRRZE
P %EEPROBEERTE -

24. [ EIRIA

Value-added tax refund receivable

FEWIBE TR

The Group
AEHE
2008 2007
= L% s
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTFTT
692 1,312

115
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4= 2
25. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS 25. RITERHER
Fixed bank deposits of approximately RMB7,164,000 RITEHRFROBARKET,164,0007T (ZF
(2007: RMBB6,624,000) with maturity over three months T4 AR¥EG,624,0007T) © sZEFAR
from 31 December 2008 carry interest at prevailing market ZEENF+ A=+ BB =ZEAZE
interest rates. The management of the Group considers B WIRBTTISAERGS - NEEEEE
that the carrying amount of deposits approximates their REZEFH 2 EMEREQAFERS -
fair value.
26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. e RBASEEHY
The Group The Company
rEE KA F]

2008 2007 2008 2007
—zz ¢ RELITH sz 5 [RELIEL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T PNSEETH AR% T PNSES

Deposits with banks RITFER 12,000 540 - —
Cash at bank and on hand RITAFHERS 20,215 44,607 785 5,496

Cash and cash equivalents in EEBER

the balance sheets TR R
ReEEY 32,215 45,147 785 5,496

Less: Bank overdrafts W IRTTEX - -
Cash and cash equivalents in RERERER

the consolidated cash FRe &

flow statement ReFEY 32,215 45,147
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the RERBecFEVBEAERFEZHER
Group and short-term bank deposits with a maturity of R=E A s AR EIHA I 3R 1T T 35 F R 5 &
three months or less at prevailing market interest rates. ZHEBBRTER - AKBECEEERE B
The management of the Group considers that the carrying e RkREEEM 2 FEEHRA A TERE

amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their

fair value.
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. BEFIIRF B Hfth B FRIA

The Group The Company
rEE AT

2008 2007 2008 2007
SLICN =z BELUCE i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETE PN AR% T PNLESE

Trade payables (note (a)) FETBR R (M 3% (a) 858 130 - —
Amounts due to directors T EEHIA
(note (b)) (M 7E(b)) 22,037 20,080 20,851 13,080
Deposits received from customers A% F U ELiZ 4 30,450 17,846 — —
Employees welfare payable JENE TR 998 760 - —
Accrued expenses and BRI &
other payables H i & < 58 19,234 4,194 742 1,922
Other tax payables E b FE R IR 513 773 - —
74,090 43,783 21,593 15,002
Note: FIEE -
(a) The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: (a) FERBERR BB AOTIT ¢
The Group
EE
2008 2007
—gENE —ETtH
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
More than 1 month but less 1EA%E3EAR
than 3 months 858 130
(b) The amounts are unsecured, repayable on demand and (o) ZEFBEREERR  RERKEERRE
interest-free except the amount due to Mr. Wang Zhong BRFEN £ BBk A 2 ARM11,439,0007T
Sheng of RMB11,439,000 (2007: RMB18,859,000) (ZZT+F : AR®18,859,0007T) #IE

which bears interest 10% per annum. BIEFBE10EFH B -
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28. DEFERRED INCOME

28. EIEUT A

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARBF T
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,750 1,616
Credited to the income statement FFABTmE (1,750) (1,616)
Income deferred during the year F IR U A 3,713 1,750
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 3,713 1,750
Y
29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. MITRHEMB
As at 31 December 2008, the bank and other loans are RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H  EEENRE
repayable as follows: TREMBERET
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EEN\E —EELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR T T
Secured bank loans repayable: AEEBEBRITER
Within 1 year or on demand 1FENRBIREREERE - 7,960
Unsecured other loan repayable: AEEREEBEMER
Within 1 year or on demand 1FENRBREREERE 40,000 -
40,000 7,960
Less: Amount due within B RBEET—FA
1 year shown under 2 HY 2 5038
current liabilities (40,000) (7,960)

Amount due after 1 year shown JERBEET —F
under non-current liabilities 1% 58 2 /78
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,-
29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. MITRHEMBER =
(Continued)
Note: fisE -
(@) Bank loans bear interest at floating interest rates ranging (@) RITERIZGF6.3ERT13EZZHF
from 6.63% to 7.13% per annum. REFE -
(b) Other loan bears interest at the fixed interest rate of (b) HEBERIRGF7A2E 2 EEMEHE -
7.12% per annum.
(c) The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the ©] EERR/RITRAMERZEHERAA
bank and other borrowings approximate their fair values. FEMEE -
30. TAX PAYABLE 30. ERRIE
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT
PRC EIT PR ERFH
At 1 January Hn—A—H 1,644 70
Provision for the year REEREAE 1,680 2115
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREEBTR 666 938
EIT paid for the year REEEHMNEERMAED (2,784) (1,479)

At 31 December Rt+t-A=+—H 1,206 1,644
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. SERERIA
The major components of the deferred tax assets/ REBEENEBEZEHLFEEHERBEZR
(liabilities) provided for at the balance sheet date and for ERBEEE/ (BB ZEZ2HHET :
the year then ended are as follows:
Deferred tax assets BEBIEEE
The Group
158
Computer software Impairment loss Impairment loss
Tax losses development costs on trade receivables on intangible assets Total
HEFR ERRAREAL EUERHESSR EREENERR @zt

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
SRR\ Emeisal CFF)\F Emkisad —T3/\F Wiy —3%/\F Wil —27/\F Wbl ae
RMB'000 aivi=io)  RMB'000 sVl el RMB'000 gusivisio) - RMB'000 V=gl RMB'000 JaiVi=yiiy
ARSTT WA ARETT NETA ARYTT WNEwA ARYTT DNREwA ARSTT NS

At the beginning of the year ~ £7) - 380 - - - 437 - 257 - 1,074
Credited/(charged) toincome ~ MBEZKHES
statement /(i) - (380) - - 1,169 437) - (257) 1,169 (1,074)
Atthe end of the year FX - - - - 1,169 - - - 1,169 -
- mgmw S E
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEE S
The Group
r&E
Computer software Impairment loss Impairment loss
Tax losses development costs on trade receivables on intangible assets Total
REER ERBAERALK ERESAERR BYEENERE @zt
2008 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2007
“SE\F g 2 )\F “BEN\E “EEN\E ST\ e

RMB’000
AR®BT R

RMB'000
ARBFT

RMB’000

ARET T A

RMB’000
ARBT R

RMB’000
ARBT R

RMB’000
ARBT R

RMB000

Atthe beginning of the year 4] - - (853) (1515) - - - - (853) (1515)
Credited to income statement ~ NEREKHES - - 853 662 - - - - 853 662
At the end of the year FXR - - - (859) - - - - - (853)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB7,123,000 (2007: RMB2,263,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets in
respect of these unused tax losses have been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

REER  AEBEZADEREEBEAARE
7,123,000 (ZEZT £ F : AR¥2,263,0007T) -
A FAVEH SR R o B0 A TE ORI R 2R B SR B i
FZ R MY ERZERS AR BB BERELT
MBEE - REBERTHE  ZSHEBBLARE
e
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 32. BER G
a) The Group a) AHEE
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAABERRER
Retained
profits/
Share Merger General  Translation (Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
RHEE o] ] BERE  REER/ @t
(RitEB)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR
At 1 January 2007 RZER+E
-A-H 34,845 (2,351) 4,430 (404) 794 37,314
Exchange difference on translation AEHNEEE
of financial statements of BRkL
foreign entities ERZER - - - (67) - (67)
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - (2,500 2,500
Profit appropriations et UnR - - 921 - (921) -
Total recognised income and TEERD
expenses for the year LINERE - - 91 (67) (3,421) (2,567)
Issue of new shares BTHTR 65,990 - - - - 65,990
At 31 December 2007 and R-ZZLE+_R
1 January 2008 =+-Ak
—“FZ\5-A-H 100,835 (2,351) 5,351 (471) (2,627) 100,737
Exchange difference on translation BENEEE
of financial statements of BBHRL
foreign entities ERES - - - (464) - (464)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (33,585) (33,585)
Total recognised income and REE®D
expenses for the year LONERE L - - - (464) (33,585) (34,049)
Issue of new shares BiEk 47,043 - - - - 47,043
At 31 December 2008 RZSE\F+ZA
=t+-H 147,878 (2,351) 5,351 (935) (36,212) 113,731
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 32. BXEf#Elm =
b) The Company bh) AEAT
Share Translation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
1358 BERE RitE#B HEt

RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT AREBTET

At 1 January 2007 RZZET+F
—A—H 34,845 (1,133) (14,766) 18,046
Exchange differences on BEBBEmK
translation of financial REMEK L
statement to presentation BE 5 A= %8
currency — (716) — (716)
Loss for the year REEEE - - (10,013) (10,013)
Issue of new shares BITHY 65,990 — — 65,990
At 31 December 2007 and R-ZZZLF+_H
1 January 2008 =+—Hk
—EENF—-HA—H 100,835 (1,849) (24,779) 74,207
Exchange differences on BEBBEmE
translation of financial REMEK L
statement to presentation BE 5 A= %
currency — (1,214) — (1,214)
Loss for the year REEEE - - (10,558) (10,558)
Issue of new shares BITHIR 47,043 - - 47,043
At 31 December 2008 RZEENGF

+ZA=+—H 147,878 (3,063) (35,337) 109,478
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 32. EX K Em
c) Authorised and issued share c) EEREBITRAEA
capital
The Group and the Company
AEERAKRAT
2008 2007
—EEN\E —EELF
Number Number of
of shares Amount shares Amount
B0 & B kx| B1n & B x|
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
T AR¥Tx T ARETT
Authorised - Ordinary shares of AT — &l HE
HK$0.01 (approximately 0.0 (HEE
equivalent to HAE#0.01067T)
RMB0.01086) each: ZERk
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—Ak
+-RA=+—H 5,000,000 53,000 5,000,000 53,000
Issued and fully paid - Ordinary BT NHARE —FK
shares of HK$0.01 HEE0.01B T
(approximately equivalent to (HEER
RMB0.0106) each: AE#0.01067T)
2R
At 1 January w—A—H 567,600 5,922 473,000 5,014
Issue of new shares BT 53,000 477 94,600 908
At 31 December R+=Z—R=+—8 620,600 6,399 567,600 5,922

On 24 July 2007, the Company allotted and issued RZZEZE
94,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by
way of a placement of its shares at HK$0.77 per

share for cash.

On 19 March 2008, the Company allotted and JrA— =

issued 53,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each by way of a placement of its shares at

HK$1.00 per share for cash.

+tHFLA- TR ARFBBAFTR
077 TR EERMNUBERE 2T
794,600,000/ & AR EI1E0.01/8 7T 2 E @K -

RO %

NEZA+NE - RKRRIEBSR.00
BB EERMUBREIRES 25 - B8 KT
53,000,000 &K EEQ0.01 B T 2 EiBh% -
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continuea) 32. BX R =
d) Nature and purpose of reserves d fEiEZHEREN

(i)  Share premium (i) REHiEE

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the RERESHERRE (EF]

Cayman lIslands, share premium is ) BHREERN DR TR

distributable to shareholders, subject to the B oMEMOR DR EEZ KR

condition that the Company cannot declare FEEERAENHEE  HHEE

or pay a dividend, or make a distribution AEREERMmMIREBER

out of share premium if (i) it is, or would BEEITRAR A% - AlAR

after the payment be, unable to pay its A5 B IR SO AT AR B 3k

liabilities as they become due, or (i) the RO R ERELERDIR °

realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital account.

At 31 December 2008, the aggregate RZEENF+ZA=+—
amount of the Company’s reserves available B ARFAIHIIRTFREZ
for distribution to shareholders was BB B8O ARE
approximately RMB109,478,000 (2007: 109,478,000 (ZEZT 4 -
RMB74,207,000) computed in accordance ANR#74,207,0007T) © JHiR
with the Companies Law (Revised) of the BREHSARE (BFTA) &
Cayman Islands and the Company’s articles RRaE 2 AR ESERMAT
of association. This includes the Company’s g ERhRRARRRMRE
share premium of approximately # ANR#147,878,000T (=&
RMB147,878,000 (2007: RMB100,835,000) ZT+F : AR®100,835,000
less translation reserve and accumulated L) BBRERERRTEED
losses of approximately RMB3,063,000 R4 A R #3,063,0007T (==
(2007: RMB1,849,000) and RMB35,337,000 T F - AR%1,849,0007T)
(2007: RMB24,779,000) respectively and is M AER#35,337,0000T (=&
available for distribution provided that THF 0 AR®24,779,000
immediately following the date on which the TT) - WEEEERE KR E B
dividend is proposed, the Company will be Big - ARAGEREREER
able to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ASEEBTRIHZER - Bl

ordinary course of business. FRBEAIHDIR ©
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 32. BFRG#EMR =

d) Nature and purpose of reserves d) fEZHEERELN @

(Continued)

(ii)  Merger reserve (i) BHE#EE
The merger reserve represents the amount AHFERERBARREAHM
of reserves of subsidiaries that have been BRERZFEH#HSE -
capitalised as a result of the merger.

(iii)  General reserve (iii) —MRfEEE
According to the relevant laws and BEPREEERRER @ &
regulations in the PRC, each of the PRC PRI B ARINEE EFEE
subsidiaries is required to appropriate at Bk BASERBEAREE
least 10% of its after-tax profit (after R ([ARGFTER) kP E
offsetting prior year’s losses), based on the TEBACVBRMAGR 2F
PRC statutory financial statements B T B 745 e 2 B A 18 g 198
prepared in accordance with the generally RED10% - ER—MREE -
accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP”) BEREEHS 2H#EBEDPENE
and financial regulations applicable to the REZEMER0%ALE - H
PRC enterprises, to the general reserve until % BEABIEREEH TR
the balance of the fund reaches 50% of the BEOMNEE K ©
PRC subsidiary’s registered capital.
Thereafter, any further appropriation can be
made at the directors’ discretion.
The general reserve fund can be utilised to —RiFESTRERBEATE
offset the prior years’ losses, or be utilised B8 AEEmMER -
to increase the capital on the condition that INER®E - —BEEERER
the general reserve shall be maintained at DORFMEAR25% °
a minimum of 25% of the registered capital
after such increase.

(iv)  Translation reserve (iv) #HmHEMRE

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2(s).

BRERBREMEREIEE
B BRREEZELZR °
MEREBRRIME2s) T8 2
SRR EIE -
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefit for other
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher stakeholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group
monitors its capital structure on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as the Group’s
bank and other borrowings less cash and cash

equivalents over its equity.

32. BX R =

e)

EXEH

AEEEREAZTBZRBRERA
SEFERE 2R  UABREMH
BRI AEAEREEN 28 - WHER
REBAGEBEAREESKAE -

AREEEGRIL TE Pt REEEEAR
R ARV REABRRERE SO
oo Hige 2 BSMRMXBFZER
EEKRFZERGE T YREEE
BRZEFHERGEELRHE - B
MR RBRENER  AREAER
BERNTERRZBRESE - BITH
B~ A B BROER IR AR AR Bk B B AR
AR -

BITREN B AREUEARERE
RERAERERE - EXARAREE
BASEZRITREMEFRRE R
ReSEMHRUEERAHE -
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 32. BXE#EME =
e) Capital management (continued) e) BEXEHE
The details of the net debt to equity ratio of the AEEFEEHESRLEZFBDN

Group is as follow: I

2007

—EENE —EETLF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 E AR%T ARBF T

Bank and other borrowings 877 & H b {& 3k 29 40,000 7,960
Less: Cash and cash B BRER

equivalents BeZEY 26 (82,215) (45,147)

Net debt/(cash) FaE/ Ee) 7,785 (37,187)

Total equity B 120,130 106,659

Total capital BER 127,915 69,472

Net debt to equity ratio FAEEERLE 6.09% N/A i@ A
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 July 2003
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible persons for their contributions to the Group. The
Scheme will expire on 27 July 2013. Under the Scheme,
the Company may grant options to any person who is a
director or an employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
the Group or any entity in which the Group holds an equity
interest, or any classes of supplier, customer, consultant,
adviser, manager or officer of the Group or any entity in
which the Group holds an equity interest.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed ten percent. of the total shares of the Company
in issue from time to time. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not in aggregate exceed thirty percent. of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The
total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each eligible
person in any 12-month period must not exceed one per
cent. of the total shares of the Company in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of the individual limit

must be subject to shareholders’ approval.

33.

RS A 4 5T &Y

ARwElz BEtEsT & (T8l 2RIER =
EZ=FLA-T\BBBZIRBERRS -
BMERAERALTHAKEMERREMNR
HEHRE - LA EBERN T —=FtA
—t+tERER - REZTE - ARB] A AKX
SEXAEEFAREZTAEENESH
BE (TmERARE)  AAKRERLEH
FrARE 2 EFAEROEMBERHEER &
F - w#aEmn - BE SEITERLER
1o

IRAR AT 8 S AR 2 B a] HAth B Ao i =1 &1 /)
BHzBRERERD A  aXTEZRN
ARBAFEHITRMD A Z10% © RIFZ
FHEISUAR R R E ) H b B AR AT B 2 A
BEBTEERITEBREETER A T3
T2 BEE  AXTBRERRATELD
BTN B2 30% » REI 1218 A #fE A
BEEBATROBEE (BECITERHER
TR BITER DR RAIERAEERTZIR
MBE  TRBEARBREHTROBHK
1% o (I — 2R R A E AR E o B
8 MABKERRRIE -
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33.

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration
for the grant. In respect of option holders other than
suppliers and customers, option may be exercised, which
shall commence 1 year from the date on which that option
is granted and shall expire on the earlier of the last day of
(i) a 10-year period from the date of such grant and (i) 10
years from 28 July 2003. In respect of option holders who
are suppliers and customers, such period shall commence
on the date of grant and expire 1 year thereafter. The
subscription price is determined by the Board, but shall
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation interests on the date of grant of that option,
which must be a business day; (b) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation interests for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of that
option; and (c) the nominal value for the time being of
each shares of the Company. There are no outstanding
share option as at 31 December 2007 and 2008.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately.

33.

34.

BB HERT B »

BEBREVNEHEL BBEF21RAE
o ERAX B TERKENRE - R
FREPUINIEREREAMS - BRE
A RERER LY B BB —FEMRTITE
BEZEXH)ZERHABREATFA (i) =F
E=FEAZ T N\BREHTFHEUREE
RE) 2 &E—BER - REREERRER
ZHEBRERBANS  ZBHEKeHRY
HEE - WA BB 1EER - REBERE
ERET  HETABLRTIZERZES
E:(QREHBREBRHWEREXR)E
¥R e A RERMATARRRG ZKH
B OREERLERERAITAGEZESA
R R RERARAATRD 2 FHIK
ME ROARBRMNER ZERMEE - X
ZETHFR-FENFTZA=+T—8"
M R ARAT 2 B o

iRtk ina #I 51 &

AEEGRERNEERBGOEELE 2B
g REEBERHELBEEAEGIRIA
HIEAEREE ((RESE]) - RESE
EEBRBE U ERABTREZ ERETRKG
3 RIBBRESFE - BEITREEEEASRS
hEB ZARBA R EIFHE%HK - &5
LR A% ABERBUA20,0008TT - BB
SHAGANERFRERENE -
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34.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

(Continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
participate in a mandatory central pension scheme
organised by the PRC government for certain of its
employees, the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group. Contributions made are based on a
percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries and are
charged to the consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
scheme. The employer’s contributions vest fully once they
are made.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing
and retired employees are payable by the relevant scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations
beyond the annual contributions.

The aggregate amounts of employer’s contributions by
the Group in respect of retirement benefits scheme dealt
with in the consolidated income statement for the year
are disclosed in note 7(a) to these financial statements.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for
its employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong and PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2008 and 2007

in respect of the retirement of its employees.

34. ;RARRFIEE »

ARBRPBEXRZZMEARRESETRE
28 m P E BTSN 285 EH REREE
g LB ZEERAKEBZEED AR
B o REZFERE - AEBRAERER
ZHFHEHERERZHARENESFAKRER
@mR o BERFHELR LA ZBR B RS
P e

o

A

Rig LTS - RA MRIKER ZRIKER
RAREEEARESN  AREGREF
HRINE B|E M E AT -

AEEGERKBHFEEL 2 BEHKERE
REAZEEBRERTERE - YERHHR
KMTFE7(@) PR EE -

REEWERE A RFRELINTERFES
BUEMEMBREETE - RRAREER
B RIBEENGFR_ETLF+_A=7
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trading
securities, trade and other payables, and bank and other
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, equity price risk,
fair value, economic risk and business risk arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business.

a) Credit risk

i) As at 31 December 2008, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated balance sheets after

deducting any impairment allowance.

ii) In respect of trade and other receivables,
in order to minimize risk, the management
has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each
major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers as
well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers
operate. The Group does not require
collateral in respect of its financial assets.
Debts are usually due within 180 days from
the date of billing.

35.

MERBEZERRBE

AEBzIEZEcRTARERSNESSE
Y RUERSR MM EKRER - BHES
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B RREERRRGEEE
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. HERKREREERIBEK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea) €-))
. e .

a) Credit risk (continued) a) EEREME @

i) (Continued) i) (&

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is REBEREH 2 EERREER
influenced mainly by the individual ERPZERSEEZE - BF
characteristics of each customer. The BB ZITEREBIE 2BIX
default risk of the industry and country in ZEHNRBRITHEERRAB Y
which customers operate also has an & ERERK  NEEH -
influence on credit risk but to a lesser AEBEERREF DRI AR
extent. At the balance sheet date, the WAEERAEPERAREP
Group has a certain concentration of credit 2 EWER B R 2 5.84% (=&
risk as 5.84% (2007: 8.08%) and 24.16% S+ 1 8.08%) &24.16% (=
(2007: 25.72%) of the total trade ZERLF 1 2572%) °

receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect EHAASERG KRR RE
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising tEKFIEBZEERR 22
from trade and other receivables are set out BRI 23 o

in note 23.

ii) The majority of the Group’s trading i) REBARITNBEHFEHFBNR
securities are blue chips listed on a AIBARSAEMCEER -
recognised stock exchange. Given their ENESEENS BREY
high credit standing, management does not mIEHRAAREHF e EE
expect any investment counterparty to fail BITHEMF -

to meet its obligations.

iv)  The credit risk on liquid funds is limited iv) HREFHHAZERKREER
because the counterparties are banks with TRMERTREETIR 2R
high credit ratings assigned by international TR ES 2 EERR

credit-rating agencies. BB -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to board
approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants to ensure
that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a
source of liquidity.

Also as mentioned in note 2(b)(ii), the Group has
extended the repayment term of the other
borrowing and obtained undertaking from
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng, the chairman and
executive director of the Group, not to demand
for the repayment of the amounts due to him until
the Group is financially viable to do so. All of the
above steps have been enable the Group to
mitigate its liquidity risk.

b)

TEBERREEEERAA
“ETN\FER

35. MERBEEHRRBE

(%)

B & & b

AEEET 2B 2EERARRR
FEEZRSEE  BRERSAKIE
HRERBEERNREENRSH
Ko HREEEGHIESEE - K
KEZBER/EHEREA LB Z
RBESHFXR  hHEERHZE
R AERASEREERTHMNES
THEEREZSREBIE R E
MIEERE  WhREERAREYR
BES BN - AEBEKBRTRE
R R RBE S HIR

SO aEE2(0) (AT - AEEEE
REMERZERY  LRSAKE
ITRBRVTEETTRB L E AL
TEERAEEERERMNE A
EEASEYREAENEERL -
FREmGRREARE 2 RBES
R\ -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. MERKGEBHERBR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueq) ()

b) Liquidity risk (continuea) h) mENEEE @

The following liquidity table set out the weighted LATREESEREHINAEERAR
average effective interest rate and the remaining AZEeRMBEREER EREA4K
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date BRI SN (BIEEAE 0N EFE 2
of the Group’s and the Company’s financial FIEMRE - tiRF B - AR &EEH
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash B2 HER) RAEERAREET
flows (including interest payments computed using EEsXFHEMSZINETHER
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates FIERHBTELE -

current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company is required to

pay:
2007
ZBRLE
Weighted Within ~~ Morethan  More than e Weighted Morethan  More than Total
average iyearor  1yearbut 2yearsbut contractual average Within 1yearor  2yearbut contractual
effective on demand less than less than undiscounted effective 1 year or less than less than undiscounted
interest rate 2 years Syears  cash flow Carrying interest rate  on demand 2years Syears  cash flow Carrying
mEFs Y- -4 REAL  AHRKR amount nEYY  -FAIER -ENE O RENL RHAER amount
LUk R WENR BENR  RETEE REE L LEES EXRE WENR BENA  RETHE REE
000 i RMB'000 RMB'00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTL  ARETR ARWTL  ARBTL ARETT ARETT ARETI
The Group i3 1]
Trade payables ERER N/A TER 858 - - 858 858 NATEE 130 - - 130 130
Amountsdueto  EFEEIE
directors (note) (M) 10.00% 22,031 - - 22,031 22,037 10.00% 20,080 - - 20,080 20,080
Other payables EHERNTE N/A TER 15,162 - - 15,162 15,162 NATEE 93 - - 93 )
Bank and other KIREDER
borrowings 7.12% 40,460 - - 40,460 40,000 6.76% 7,960 - - 7,960 7,960
78,517 - - 78,517 78,057 28,263 - - 28,263 28,263
Note: B 5T
The amounts are unsecured, repayable on demand and ZREAEERR AEREZREER
interest-free except the amount due to Mr. Wang Zhong BB MENEIEABEEIRBARE
Sheng of RMB11,439,000 (2007: RMB18,859,000) 11,439,000t (ZZEZT+F : ARW

which bears interest at 10% per annum. 18,859,0007T) Jh A B10E & & ©
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. MERKGEBHERBR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&

=

35.

b) Liquidity risk (continuea) h) mENEEE @

2008 2007
ZBENE ZRRLE
Weighted Within ~ Morethan ~ More than Total Weighted More than ~ More than Total
average iyearor  1yearbut 2yearsbut contractual average Within 1yearor  2yearbut contractual
effective on demand less than less than undiscounted effective 1 year or less than less than undiscounted
interest rate —ER 2years 5years  cash flow Carrying interest rate  on demand 2years Syears  cash flow Carrying
mEFs 2R MENL  ANREE amount nEYY  -FRIER -EUE O RENL RHAER amount
b BENR  RERAE REE | GHES IR REUR BENA  RETHE REE
RMB'000 RM RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
) ARBTRL  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTRL  ARMTR
The Company |
Amountsdueto  ETEEIE
directors (note) () 10.00% 20,851 - - 20,851 20,851 10.00% 13,080 - - 13,080 13,080
Other payables EERTE N/A TER 174 - - 174 174 NATER - - - - -
21,025 - - 21,025 21,025 13,080 - - 13,080 13,080
Note: 5
The amounts are unsecured, repayable on demand and ZHEAEER  AREKERRES

interest-free except the amount due to Mr. Wang Zhong
Sheng of RMB11,439,000 (2007: RMB11,859,000)
which bears interest at 10% per annum.

MENIABLEZRBEBARE
11,489,000t (ZEZ£F : ARK
11,859,0007T) Jh A B10E:H & »
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. MERKGEBHERBR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueq) ()
c) Interest rate risk c) FZHEEs

AEEEH 2R RENRE KR LR
ERASEEY  ROTFARLRED
MR B 2 RIT R E A& 5RARRE -

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits and bank and other borrowings at floating

interest rate.

i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate

i) FlZEHR

TRHANAEEERREER

profile of the Group’s borrowings at the 2 R ERBER :
balance sheet date:
The Group
TEH
2007
—ET+F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
BERAI=E B =
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARETR ARBF T
Fixed rate borrowings: ~ EIFEFIRE % :

Other loan HEMER 7.12 40,000 N/A T F -
Floating rate borrowings: ¥ B | & (& 2%

Bank loans RITER N/A RER - 6.63% [E 7,960
Total borrowings “BE K 40,000 7,960
Fixed rate borrowings as  [& & 1| 2 {& &

a percentage of total HaERz

borrowings B 100% 0%
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

i)

Sensitivity analysis

All of the cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits and bank and other borrowings
of the Group which are fixed rate
instruments are insensitive to any change
in interest rates. A change in interest rates
at the balance sheet date would not affect
profit or loss.

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that
a general increase or decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease or
increase the Group’s loss after income tax
by approximately RMB23,000 (2007: profit
after income tax by approximately
RMB200,000). Other components of
consolidated equity would not change in
response to the general increase or
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual balance
sheet date. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2007.

TEBERREEEERAA
“ETN\FER

35. MERBEEHRRBE

(%)

c)

FIEREPE o)

i)

RS

AEEREREIRESFE
Y RITEREBSERTAZ
RITREAM BN - HFRAEMR
BHREIK - REERZF
REFE M HE BT EKE
@,

RZEENF+ZA=+—
H @ e EEE E AT
10018 £ 28 - M AT H Ah A] &
AEREFET - A EER
FTS BB B BIR L a8 InsI A
R¥23,000t (ZEZ £ 4F
BRASHERINOARE
200,0007T) ° #ré& s H A
B ERMA & AR IR _E sk
TRk -

0

bt BREAE AT TR E A R
PREERBRENCERARZ
BEENITENEITESRT
Er A =@ - 10018 EFH
EHAETHREEREEEHE
ETEFEAERBRNA
Rl REM A R E BRI fAET - 2%
IMB_ZFTLF2RREE
HETT o
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

d)

e)

Foreign currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect

to the Group’s foreign exchange exposure. The

Group’s transactional currency is RMB as

substantially all turnover are within PRC. With the

natural hedging of the revenue and costs being

denominated in RMB, the directors believe that the

Group’s transactional foreign exchange exposure

was insignificant and no sensitivity analysis is

required due to immateriality.

Equity price risk

i)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
in respect of investments held by the Group
which are classified as trading securities.
The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on securities
listed on the Stock Exchange and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks at the reporting date. If
the prices of the respective equity securities
had been increased or decreased by 5%,
the loss for the year will decrease or
increase by RMB77,000 (2007:

RMB216,000) as a result of the change in
fair value of equity securities.

35. MERBEEHRRBE

(%)

d)

e)

HI BE 2 B

B AT - ZNER B30 £ A A S G R g A R
ZHHABE - AEBZRZFEE/A
R¥  REKSEXRLMELERIK
BHE - ERREEKAAARED)
B -BFRR  AEEZXHINER
BIWFHEN BHRNTBEK @ Bt
BAFHBRMED T -

R 1 B

i)

AREBRAAXEFELER
REBHEFZENRER
- EEECHFBTRRAR
RE 2 REAE AR ILE
B AEBHRERRETE
SPRAER AT EBES
RBFEMHES

HRESHT

BRESTERERS A
RERBETETE © WEBRA
FBHRER LA TEE% - B
REHFHN AT EZ DK EHAR
FEBBR KL MNARYE
77,000 (ZEZLEF : AR
#216,0007T) °
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

f)  Fair value

The carrying amounts of significant financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective fair
values as at 31 December 2008 and 2007.

i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables

The carrying values approximate their fair
values because of the short maturity of
these items.

i) Trading securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date without any
deduction for transaction costs. Fair values
of unlisted managed investment funds are
based upon the market return of the
underlying securities.

iii)  Bank and other borrowings

The carrying amount of bank and other
loans approximates their fair value based
on the borrowing rates currently available
for bank and other loans with similar terms

and maturities.

f)

35. MEMRERHRRBR

(%)

AFE

RIBEENFR_ZEZLF+ A=
+—B EXCREENAEBZEA
BEORBRESBZRFE -

) HeRBEEFEY  BKER
AR HMEKRIE - B
R H b FE IR

MRZERAZEHBE &
FZEREAENR/RERTE-
i) HEHEH
RFEIZEEBEFARTET
BEEARBERATHE - EL

MERREESZ A FHERE
MRS TS HTE -

i)  RITRHEMBERR

RITREMERZERENR
BERE R B REFH L2
B ARELZ RTT R B A B R ATER
BZtEEMNEMEZATE -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

g)

h)

Economic risk

The Group’s operations may be adversely affected
by significant political, economic and social
uncertainties in the PRC. Although the government
of the PRC has been pursuing economic reform
policies in the past years, no assurance can be
given that the PRC government will continue to
pursue such policies or that such policies may not
be significantly altered.

Business risk

A substantial portion of the Group’s operations is
conducted in the PRC. This includes risks
associated with, among others, the political,

economic and legal environment in the PRC.

35. MEMRERHRRBR

(&)
g) £5EE S

AEBEEBAZPE 2 ERNBA - &
ERHeTHBREzamTE - #
RPBERFEBE - BEETEENRE
B MR RS B 5 4 4R 1
PAEEBRAEABET G ANIER
e

h) ZEFREE

REBAREOEHHERBEEST - b
Bz AR (BETRR) FE 2B
B ROEBIRE -
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36. COMMITMENTS

a)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had authorised
capital commitments contracted but not provided for

in the financial statements as follows:

TEBERRESERRAR
—ET)\FEH

“EENFFZA=T—HLEFE RAREINIE)

36. ik

a)

REBER  ARERPBRKRDA]
%’U'I"E?K%TEZ%EE$7¥K%ZZHT :

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARBF T
Contracted for: BET4)
— Plant and equipment — MR R 85,400 122,710
— Construction in progress ~ — & T2 11,806 7,379
— Intangible assets —\BREE 1,981 —
99,187 130,089
At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum b) REEER  BEENAEYWHE TR
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases BEE G E LB T 2 KRR EN K
in respect of office premises are payable as follows: EFIRBENT ¢
The Group The Company
rEE KA F]
2008 2007 2008 2007
= s TRTF et s TR F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt PNGERwl AR Tt PN R
Within 1 year 1F R 240 960 165 901
After 1 year but 1F 1 E5F R
within 5 years - — - —
After 5 years AELE - — — —
240 960 165 901

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one year, with
an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

AEERZERBEEHOBEZY
E2AEMA - MIFHEHA—ME—F
BREHERAA R R BTE
MY - ZSHOBERSHAESE -
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37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

37. BEHFE

At the balance sheet date, the Group had pledged the

REFEER  AEESER TIIEENER

following assets to secure bank borrowings granted to &%$%@Zﬁﬂﬁ%§ :
the Group:
The Group
TEH

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARBTT
Buildings held for own use FIEERZEF - 4,799

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Transactions with related parties

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the following is a summary
of significant related party transactions entered into
in the normal course of business between the

Group and its related parties during the year.

As detailed in note 20 to the financial statements,
the Group has 8% equity interests in &7, a
newly incorporated private entity in the PRC for
the year ended 31 December 2008. In the opinion
of the directors, & ¥ is ultimately controlled
by an independent third party with 58% eqwty
interests, while EFE EM AL EH AR LD

related company with common directors of the
Company, also held 17% equity interests of & &
ik, Currently, B YR is in its start up stage
and it is planned to provide logistic service of

liquefied coalbed gas for the Group in the future.

38. RERXS
(a) HERAERZZXS

R BHR L MEMHAREEIN -
TREFARSEEARESER %%
BRIEPILZERBETRXSHH

gaé‘ o

WABA TS ER R M SE 20T RF AL - AEEFF
EBEMR8WIE - BEVIRARE
EZEENFFTZA=+—HLFE
RABFEMRIZAEE - ES
RE - BEYVRE - BBEIE=F%
AP R 58% Ak HE - T B A A
ﬁ LRIZEEZAERRIEAEMRE
EHBRRRINFHFAEEEYRI7%K
o RHFELEMMIELRERE - A
FAEIERRAAEERERIEKER
BZnR -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. AESFXZXH »
(Continued)
(b) Key management personnel (h) EEEBAEZHM
emoluments
Emoluments for key management personnel, TREEABZFHM (BRERMFIH
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors B2NTARRESZHE) - KAH
as disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest paid HIORBZETRRFMERSNT
employees as disclosed in note 10 are as follows:
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—gENE —ETr
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTF T
Short-term employee benefits 52 #1{& 8 1& 4,634 3,910
Post-employment benefits BER 2 1B A - -
4,634 3,910
39. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 39. hERB=F
Certain comparative figures have been re-classified in ETHEREFE TEY - UFERFEMBE
conformity to the current year’s presentation of the HwEZ2HHA -
financial statements.
40. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 40. ERRA
At 31 December 2008, the directors consider the ultimate RZZBENFFTZA=+—0 ' EFRAEA
controlling party of the Group to be Jumbo Lane SERKERTAEEREBRAR(IE
Investments Limited (“Jumbo Lane”), which is #H]) " RARBEZBESFMERLIHA
incorporated in BVI. Jumbo Lane does not produce Al BEWERHAIHAREN 2 W BR
financial statements available for public use. o
41. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL 41. MBHRERZBA
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved by the Board on Zliﬁﬁ%#&i%a REFER-_FTTNF=A=
27 March 2009. +tEB®
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Five year financial summary

AFERBHHRHE

RESULTS KR
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HiLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EEINE —TTE ZEERE “EERE “EENE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT ARBFT ARETT ARETFTT
Turnover HEE 38,598 49,399 25,773 31,246 17,985
(Loss)/profit before Bk S8 Al
income tax (&B18) /&7 (33,261) 965 (6,618) 1,399 657
Income tax FriSH (324) (3,465) 27 (461) (753)
Attributable to: oL
Equity shareholders 7R A #E %5 iR R
of the Company (33,585) (2,500) (6,591) 938 (96)
Minority interests > SIR R 25 - - - - 95
(Loss)/profit AEE (BE),/
for the year kil (33,585) (2,500) (6,591) 938 (1)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
At 31 December
R+=-B=+-8
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENF i ZTERE —ETRF “EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETFTT ARETFTT ARBFT ARBETFT
Total assets BEE 239,139 162,649 57,100 60,032 55,583
Total liabilities BaE (119,009) (55,990) (14,772) (10,651) (7,908)
Minority interests D EIR R iR - - - (155) (155)
Shareholders’ fund BRE 120,130 106,659 42,328 49,226 47,520







